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J.P. Morgan Private Lquity Limited
Consolidated Fiancial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Financial Summary (Company Information)

30 June 2011

USS Equity Shares
NAV per Share

$1.36

Share Price $1.09
Shares in Issuance 356.9m
2013 Z.DP Shares

NAV per Share 63.41p
Share Price 67.13p
Shares in Issuance 63.3m
2015 ZDP Shares

NAY per Share' 60.11p
Share Price 68.63p
Shares in Issuance 68.6m
Statement of Financial Position (extract)

Investments at fair Market Value $639.6m
Bunk Deposits $37.0m
Other Assets” $3.5m
Credit Facility’ (§74.2m)
Other Liabilities? ($11.5m)
Total Net Asset Value’ $614.4m

Performance as at 30 June 2011

JPEL Performance Since Inception at 30 June 2005°
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Past performance is not an indication of future performance,

1 Fhioughout the document, the terin Net Asset Value per share or “NAV per Share™ for eacti of IPEL s two dlasses of Zera Dividend Prefuaence Shares {2013 2DP Shares and 2015 ZDP Shares) retars
te the earrying salue uf the ZDP shares as at 30 June 2011 ZDP sharcholders are entitled o & redemption ameunt that1s mereased dutly at such 3 darly compound rate s would give n final enutlement as
reterenved in Note 14 10 the Consolidated I inancial Statements page o5 and 66
> Inchudes accroed mierest incomne and decivalive ussots

On 10 March 2008 JPEL enteretd 1w tu 8 mutu-curreney eredit facility i the smount of US$ 156 million wirh Linyds Bank ¢ arporate Markets
1 Includes fee accruals and othes pavables
S dmtormaton presentad as non-consolitated  The Not Asser Valoe represents the capatul ol thy Company which meludes the Net Asset Value of the ZDP shiares as well as the Net Asset Vedue of the
LSS Equity Sheres
6 Source Managers Bloombera as at 30 dime 2011 JPFL NAV duia a5 at 30 June 2011 released +iu the | ondun Stock | wchange on 1o Augist 2011 LPX R Camposite performance showit is
indexed 1o JPEL s watial trade price of $1OT on 50 June 2005 The indey is well diverstfiad across rewions and LPE investment styles snd represents the develupment of afl LPE companies vovered by
EPXR it Al certain hguidity constrauits 'The LEXK Composite is 2 wlobal Listed Privite Egnity {19173 indey wath a hroad munilier of constituents
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J.P. Morgan Privale Equity Linited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 201 |

Historical Performance

JPEL USS Equity NAYV and Share Price Development through 30 June 2011’

Since Inception
$2.00
$1.80

$1.60

$1.40

InUS$

$1.20

$1.00

$0.80

$060 + - : . . : — T e ] |
Jun05 DecO05 Jun06 Dec06 Jun07 Dec07 Jun08 Dec08 Jun09 Dec09 Jun10 Dec 10 Junll

JPELNAY  em===|pF) Equity Share

JPEL USS Equity Share Price Premium / (Discount) to NAV?
Since Inception

20.0%
10.0%
0.0% A+ . WP R
(10.0%) JPEL. Avarage Dacountto NAV
Area N\, JPEL Pramiom  Dincaum toNAV
(20.0%) | h o~ el e to
rernge Discountto NAY
MIPE ox 3. Prenuum / Discountio NAV
(30.0%) -
{40.0%)
(50.0%)
(60.0%)
(70.0%)
(80.0%)
§338§88§§8'53838§3889222:2
a H] a a = I3 a I3 - c -
5§ 8% 5 8 &% &8 5 5 8 5 5 § 835 5 38 8 8 58 8355

1 Source: Bloomberg, Managers  Ax ot 30 June 2011,
2 Source: Bloomberg, Managers. Morningstar Investment Trust Private Equity ex 31 Howeighted Discount as at 30 June 2011, JPEL NAV as a1 30 June 2011 of $1.36 per
USS Equity Share

Past pevformance is not an indication of future performance.
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J.P. Morgan Privale Equity Limited

Consolidated Financiat Statements as at 30 June 20t |

Historical Performance (continued)

2013 JPEL ZDP NAV and Share Price Developnient through 30 June 2011"
Since Incepiion
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2015 JPEL ZDP NAY and Share Price Development through 30 June 2011
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1 Seurce: Bloomberg, Managers As at 30 June 2011,
Past performance is not an indication of future performance.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Overview & Strategy

1.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited (“*JPEL” or the “Company™) is a Guernsey registered and incorporated closed ended
investment company that trades on the London Stock Exchange (LSE: JPEL, JPEZ, JPZZ, JPWW). The Company is
designed primarily to invest in the global private equity market. The fair value of the Company’s total assets as at 30
June 2011 was $700.1 million.

JPEL held its initial public offering on 30 June 2005 under the nane “Bear Stearns Private Equity Limited”. The
Company currently has three classes of shares: US$ Equity Shares, 2013 Zero Dividend Preference Shares (2013 ZDP
Shares”) and 2015 Zero Dividend Preference Shares (2015 ZDP Shares™). At 30 June 2011, 2013 ZDP Shares made up
10.5% of total capital, 2015 ZDP Shares made up 10.8% of total capital and US$ Equity Shares made up the remaining
78.7%.

Subsequent to 30 June 2011. JPEL issued a new class of 2017 Zero Dividend Preference Shares (°2017 ZDP Shares™)
which was listed on the l.ondon Stock Exchange (L.SE: JPSZ) on 12 September 2011.

JPEL issued warrants free of subscription cost to shareholders on record as at 17 August 2009. One warrant was issued
for every six US$ Equity Shares owned. The warrants are publicly traded on the London Stock Exchange under the
symbol “JPW W™, As at the time of publication of the Annual Report. there were 57.895,919 warrants in issuance.

IPEL is managed by Bear Stearns Asset Management Inc. (“BSAM Inc.”) and JPMorgan Asset Management (UK)
Limited (“JPMAM UK™) (together, the “*Managers™), both wholly-owned subsidiaries of JPMorgan Chase & Co.
Following the acquisition of The Bear Stearns Companies Inc. by JPMorgan Chase & Co., the investment management
tearn within BSAM Inc. that has managed the Company since its inception joined 1.P. Morgan Asset Management. The
Company has entered into a management agreement with the Managers to invest the assets of the Company on a
discretionary basis, subject to the overall supervision of the Board of Directors (the “Directors™), a majority of whom are
independent. The Directors have overall responsibility for the Company’s investment policy and the Company’s
activities.

JPMorgan Chase & Co. (NYSE: IPM) is a leading global financial services firm with assets of $2.2 trillion and
operations in more than 60 countries. The firm is a leader in investment banking, financial services for consuiners, small
business and commercial banking, financial transaction processing, asset management. and private equity.

The key measure of performance used by the Board and shareholders to assess the Company’s performance is the NAV
which is prepared on a monthly basis by HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (“the Administrator”). The Portfolio
Review on pages 16 to 18 is accordingly prepared on the Company basis as this information is considered more relevant
to the needs of sharcholders for assessment of the Company’s performance.

Strategy

The Company primarily pursues the tollowing strategies to enhance shareholder value and to meet its investment
objective:
= acquires secondary portfolios of direct investinents and significantly invested partnership investments
to accelerate NAV development:

«  opportunistically invests in buyout. ventre capital, and special situations funds and investiments
throughout the world based on attractive transaction values, advantageous market conditions. and
compelling risk-adjusted return potential;

*  obtains exposure to individual companies by co-investing alongside private equity sponsors in
companies that offer the potential for substantial equity appreciation;
s diversifies its portfolio by manager. industry, geography, investment stage, and vintage year: and
® actively manages the portfolio by repositioning its investment composition from time to time in order
to capitalise on changes in private equity market conditions.
In summary, the investment strategy of the Company is to achieve both short-term and long-term capital
appreciation by investing in a well-diversified portfolio of private equity interests and by capitalising on the
inefficiencies of the global secondary private equity market.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Chairman’s Statement

The twelve months ended 30 June 2011 marks the Company’s six-year anniversary and the beginning of an
exciting chapter in JPEL’s history.

In the six vears since our initial public offering on the London Stock Exchange, the global markets have witnessed three
years of economic growth and prosperity followed by three vears of uncertain equity and credit markets.

Market uncertainty has continued well into the months following the Company's sixth anniversary. As | write this letter.
I note that during the third quarter of 2011. the global markets witnessed the worst quarter since the 2008 credit crisis and
the possibility of another recession remains. However, JPEL is an opportunistic secondary investor and such periods of
prolonged or intermittent market volatility often create deal flow as investors holding illiquid assets seek liquidity.

In this year’s statement, [ would again like to address how the Managers have built JPLEL’s portfolio to be defensive, to
operate in an efficient manner and to be well positioned for a variety of economic conditions. In particular, we started
the 2011 fiscal year with four distinct objectives:

®  Reinstate Tender Facility: JPEL is the only listed private equity company to offer a tender to sharcholders at
prevailing net asset value (“NAV?”). During the height of the credit crisis, JPEL’s Board of Directors
temporarily suspended the tender facility in order to bolster JPEL’s liquidity position. As a result of increased
distribution activity and a strong balance sheet, JPEL was able to distribute over 50% of net distributions
received during the 2010 calendar year to shareholders through the tender facility at 31 December 2010, Since
inception. and inclusive of the 31 December 2010 tender. ithe Company has returned over $127 million to
sharcholders through this facility at an average price of $1.65 per US$ Equity Share.

e Lower Financing Costs: As we discussed in the Chairman’s Statement for the six month period ending 31
December 2010, a portion of JPEL’s NAV development during the 2010 calendar year was offset by ongoing
expenses relating to JPELs legacy credit facility with Fortress Credit Corp. As a reminder, IPEL entered into a
loan facility agreement with Fortress Credit Corp in 2008 (the “Fortress Facility”). The $100 million Fortress
Facility had an interest rate of US$ LIBOR + 500 bps on drawn amounts (with a LIBOR floor ot 250 bps) and
50 bps on undrawn amounts. The Mangers viewed this facility as extremely inefficient financing and sought to
refinance when there was an opening in the credit markets, 1 am extremely pleased to report that in March
2011. the Company was able to refinance the Fortress Facility with a larger. multi-currency facility in the
amount of $150 million from Lloyds TSB Bank ple (“Lloyds Facility”). The Lloyds Facility offers ihe
Company multi-currency flexibility, improved pricing and a longer maturity date of May 2013. Key terms of
the facility include: LIBOR/EURIBOR + 275bps for a loan to value ratio (LLTV) of less than or equal to 10%,
and LIBOR/EURIBOR + 3258bps for a LTV ratio of greater than 10%. each with no LIBOR/EURIBOR floor. |
believe that the Lloyds Facility will better support JPEL as it seeks to capitalise on opportunities within the
secondary private equity markets and grow assets under management.

= Strengthen portfolio to withstand a variety of economic conditions: |\ preparation for, and in response to the
global credit crisis, the Managers created a defensive portfolio. built primarily through secondary transactions
with approximately 44% of JPEL’s private equity portfolio invested in lower-middle market companies. The
Managers continue to teel that while a broad. global recovery is uncertain, there will be pockets of recovery and
they feel confident with a significant exposure to the lower-middle market. In recent months, the Managers
have sought to reposition JPEL’s porttolio with middle-market buyout assets that might be well suited for exits.
if markets do begin to recover.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

In this vein. on 16 August 2011. JPEL announced an all-stock acquisition of a portfolio of 38 European mid-
market biyout co-investments (*Co-Investment Portfolio”) managed by top-tier buyout firms including 3i, Duke
Street, Barclays and Milestone. The Co-Investment Portfolio was purchased from the SPL Funds' for £56.5
million ($91.9 million) through the issuance of £36.7 million of US$ Equity Shares (at $1.34 per share) and
£19.8 million of a new class of ZDP Shares due 2017. The acquisition is expected to be accretive to JPEL’s
NAV and the Co-Investment Portfolio is expected to generate positive growth and distributions from near-term
exits.  Subsequent to the announcement, the Company was informed by Liberum Capital that all ZDP Shares
due 2017 were placed with institutional investors via a secondary placing at a premiwn to the initial placing
price.

I'am particularly excited about this transaction as it meets three of JPEL s 2011 fiscal year goals:
o add to mid-market buyout assets, primarily in the UK, Germany and France;
& enhance JPEL’s balance sheet by adding mature assets (the average age of the Co-Investment Portfolio
is 3.6 years) with the potential to offer meaningtul liquidity in 1-2 years: and
o continue to differentiate JPEL amongst secondary players and listed private equity peers.

This transaction will be discussed in more detail in this Annual Report. | view this transaction as a very exciting
and innovative way for the Company to reposition its portfolio, particularly without utilising cash.

©  Exploit volatility in the global markets in order to invest in opportunistic secondary transactions: 1C).
has continued to reposition its portfolio through new secondary investments. Since 30 June 2010. JPEL has
deployed $41.1 million in nine investments.

Investment Activity

Although JPEL’s investment pace continues to be measured, macro trends — such as regulatory changes in the tinancial
industry, dissolving hedge fund and private equity fund structures. and broken sharcholder bases in many private cquity
backed deals - have increased JPEL s deal flow.

JPLEL completed nine investments, deploying a total ol’ $41.1 million. during the twelve month period ending 30 June
2011, The investments were consistent with the macro economic perspective the Managers have taken over the past
twelve months and in general were focused on distressed debt opportunities in the United States, trnaround situations in
Europe and growth equity investments in emerging economies. The Managers believe that these investments will
contribute to the Company’s NAV development and cash tlow distribution pattern over the next twelve months. The
individual investients are discussed further in the Investment Activity section of this report.

1 Includes Private Equity (PEFIC Lad, SPE. Private Equity ('E231C L, and SPE Integrated Finance (PE3 1C Lad). collectively “SPE. Funds ™. IPFL and the SPL, Funds
have entered into an Feonomic Transfer Agreement relating 1o 2 interests within the Co-Investment Portfolto Pursuant to the Geonomne Transter Agreemoent, JPEL will
retain record and fegal ownership of the relevant ownership interests in accordance with the terms of the Acquisition Agreement bur will ranster o the SPL Funds all
veonvmiv rights, benefits and obligations in and w those ownership interests.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

NAYV and Share Price Performance

In the twelve months ending 30 June 2011, JPEL’s NAV per USS$ Equity Share grew by 6.3% fiom $1.28 to $1.36.
Overall, JPEL’s NAV development has been moderate for the 2011 fiscal year due to a combination of factors. inchiding
the following:

o Valuations: The Managers believe that there is embedded value in the underlying JPEL portfolio as evidenced
by the levels of revenue and EBITDA growth at the Company's top 35 buyout positions. Revenue and
EBITDA for the top positions grew 12.3% and 11.9%, respectively, for the 12 month period ending 30 June
2011

e Foreign Exchange Volatility: Forcign exchange volatility continues to affect JPEL’s performance as the
Company maintains underlying investment exposure to the Euro, Sterling and Australian Dollar. During the
twelve month period ending 30 June 2011, the Euro, Sterling and Australian Dollar posted strong gains against
the US Dollar. appreciating 18.5%, 7.4% and 27.3%, respectively.

® Financing Cost: Ongoing expenses. including JPEL's credit facility and Zero Dividend Preference Shares.
offset a portion of net asset value development. Through the new Lloyds Facility, the Company has a more
efficient cost ot linancing,

The public market value of the Company’s US$ Equity Shares decreased by 2.4% during the twelve month period ending
30 lune 2011, As at 30 September 2011, the Company’s USS Equity Shares wraded at a 33.8% discount to net asset
value. which compared favourably to the average discount of the selected peer group of 39.6%.° The Company is
disappointed by this decline and has redoubled its efforts in recent months to increase its rating,.

Subsequent to the end of the period, the Company has taken measures to support its share price and has repurchased
2,177.000 US$ Equity Shares in the open market at an average price of $0.966 per US$ Equity Share. The Managers and
Board believe that the current market price does not reflect the underlying value of the Company's portfolio. and as such,
buyback authorization was granted at prevailing market levels. These open market repurchases will be accretive to the
Company’s NAV of §1.36 per US$ Equity Share at 30 June 2011.

IPEL’s 2013 ZDP Shares continue to perform well. The NAV of 2013 ZDP Shares rose 7.3% during this period. from
39.09p to 63.41p per share. JPEL’s 2013 ZDP Share price has increased 52.8% since inception, closing at 67.13 on 30
June 2011 At 30 June 2011, JPEL’s 2013 ZDP Shares traded at a 6.8% premium to NAV,

JPEL’s 2015 ZDP Shares also continue to perform well. The NAV of 2015 ZDP Shares rose 8.6% daring this period,
from 55.33p to 60.11p per share. JPEL’s 2015 ZDP Share price has increased 34.6% since inception. closing at 68.63p
on 30 June 201 1. At 30 June 2011, JPEL’s 2015 ZDP Shares traded at a 12.9% premium to NAV,

JPEL’s newly issued 2017 ZDP Shares have performed well since admission on 12 September 201 1. The share price has
increased 16.2% since inception, closing at 75.5p on 30 September 2011 compared to its initial capital entitlement of
65.0p.

b Source: Managers. Represents largest underlying buyout mvestments within J'G1 s largest 50 anderlying companies. Ruyout related investments represent 36 of JPEL's
laryest 30 mvestments and 33% of total privaie cquity investment value. Based on 30 Junc 2011 unaudited market valie of investments as released on 16 August 2011, using
latest available widerlying cempany data at ume of publication.

2 Source: J.P Morgan Cazenove Alternative Statistics. Bloomberg as at 30 Seplember 2011 Peer Group members based on multi-manager listed private equity funds
included in the research publication “LPE Focus” by RBS and inclades: APEN, SHPN, PEHN. PIN, CPEN. PEY. CCAP. HIEQ, FPEC. NRPE, HVPE. SEP.

www jpelonline.com



J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Market Outlook

Opportunities in the portion of the secondary private equity market where JPEL tends to invest have been aided by the
exireme volatility in the world snch as the U.S and Eurozone debt issues. geopolitical changes in the Middle Fast and
currency pressures in developing markets,

Market volatility and prolonged periods of uncertainty should contribute to a favourable secondary pricing environment
in the portion of the secondary private equity market where the Managers operate. The Managers are currently focusing
on increasing exposure to companics that can grow revenues and cash flows despite a difficult economic environment.
This should lead to an emphasis on companies with significant emerging market exposure or to those that are
operationally geared to benetit disproportionally from incremental revenue growth.

JPEL has a nimble, opportunistic investinent style that thrives in markets that produce distressed and motivated sellers. |
remain confident that JPEL will continue to be a market innovator and that the Company will be able to offer a

compelling, ditferentiated surategy to its shareholders.

Once again. | would like to thank sharcholders for the support and continued confidence that they have placed in the
Company and in its ability to successfully execute its private equity investment strategy.

Trevor Ash

Chairman

31 October 2011
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 201 (

Corporate Actions

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company on 12 July 2010 all of the following special and ordinary resolutions put
to sharcholders were duly passed:

e To renew the Company's authority to make purchases of its own issued shares pursuant to any proposed
tender offer;

¢ Torenew the Company’s general authority to make market purchases of its own issued shares;

* Toapprove and adopt the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2009;

*  Tore-clect Trevor Charles Ash as a non-executive Director of the Company, who retires by rotation;

* Tore-elect John Loudon as a non-executive Director of the Company, who retires by rotation:

*  Tore-elect Christopher Paul Spencer as 4 non-executive Director of the C ompany, who retires by rotation:
* Tore-clect Gregory S. Getschow as an excecutive Director of the Company, who retires by rotation:

* Tore-elect KPMG Channel Islands Limited as Auditor to the Company;

To authorise the Directors to determine the Auditor’s remuneration.
Furthermore. pursuant to the AGM. the following special resolution put to shareholders was declined:
* Torenew the disapplication of the pre-emption rights set out in the Articles of Incorporation.

On 29 September 2010, the Company announced a tender offer to purchase up to 3% of current USS Equity Shares, 2013
ZDP Shares and 2015 ZDP Shares, respectively, outstanding (excluding shares held in treasury). Shares were to be
tendered at a price based on the prevailing net asset value (NAV) for the quarter ending 31 December 2010.

On 30 December 2010, the Company announced that JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited ("JPMAM UK") was
appointed as its co-manager. The addition of JPMAM as co-manager reflects the appointment ol the legal entity which
employs the London-based members of the JPEL team and will have no adverse impact on the operations or management
of the Company. JPMAM has been appointed on the same material terms as contained in the existing lnvestiment
Management Agreement with Bear Stearns Asset Management Inc.

On 25 February 2011, the Company announced that it accepted the following shares tendered 1o it at the applicable Net
Asset Value per share as at 31 December 2010:

¢ 11,036.942 of US$ Equity Shares at a price of USD 1.30 per share.
* 55011 0f2013 Zero Dividend Preference shares at a price of GBP 0.6123 per share.
e 329,241 of 2015 Zero Dividend Preference shares at a price of GBP 0.5769 per share.

On 10 March 2011, the Company announced that it reached agreement on the terms of a new multi-currency credit
tacility in the amount of USS1350 million with Lloyds TSB Bank ple. Proceeds from the new facility were used in part to
relinance the Company'’s $100 million facility with Fortress Credit Corp. which was scheduled to mature in 2012. The
Lloyds Facility offers the Company multi-currency flexibility, improved pricing and a longer maturity date ot May 2013.
Key terms of the acility include:

* LIBOR/EURIBOR +275bps for a loan to value ratio (LTV) of less than or equal to 10%. with no
LIBOR/EURIBOR floor

¢ LIBOR/EURIBOR +325bps for a LTV ratio of greater than 10%. with no LIBOR/EURIBOR floor
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Corporate Actions (continued)

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company on 7 June 2011 all of the following special and ordinary resolutions put
1o sharcholders were duly passed:

* Torenew the Company's authority to make pinchases of its own issued shares pursuant to any proposed
tender offer;

®  Torenew the Company's general authority to make market purchases of its own issued shares;

® To renew the disapplication of the pre-emption rights set out in the Articles of Incorporation up to an
amount equal ta 10 percent of each class of the Coinpany’s issued share capital (excluding treasury shares);

*  Toapprove and adopt the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Company for the vear ended 30
lune 2010;

¢ Tore-elect Gregory S. Getschow as an executive Director of the Company. who retires by rotation;
e Tore-elect KPMG Channel [slands Limited as Auditor to the Company:
e Toauthorise the Directors to determine the Auditor’s remuneration: and

e To authorise and agree the remuneration of Directors.

On 16 August 2011, the Company announced that it had entered into a conditional agreement with Private Equity (PED)
IC Ltd, SPL Private kquity (PE2) IC Ltd, and SPL Integrated Finance (PE3 1C 1.td) (together, the "SPL. Funds") to
acquire a portfolio of 38 iniddle-marker co-invesiiments ("Co-Investment Portfolio™) in an all-stock acquisition (the
"Acquisition™) valued at £56.5 million or approximately US$91.9 million. Under the terms of the Acquisition, the SPL
Funds received approximately 65% of the purchase price. or £36.7 million. through the issue of 44,727,053 new US$
Equity Shares issued at JPEL's unaudited USS$ Equity NAV per share at 30 June 201 | and 35% of the purchase price or
£19.8 million through the issue of a new class of 2017 Zero Dividend Preference Shares ("New 2017 ZDP Shares"). The
30.,470.753 new 2017 ZDP Shares issued as a part of the transaction have a gross redemption yield of 8.25% and will
mature on 31 December 2017, The transaction closed on 12 September 2011,

On 25 August 2011, the Company announced that Liberum Capital Limited, acting as broker on behalf of the SPL Funds.
conditionally placed all 2017 ZDP Shares with institutional investors.

In the period 23 August 2011 through 21 October 2011, the Company purchased 2,177.000 US$ Equity Shares at an
average price ol $0.966 per share.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Managers’ Report

Market Overview

Global Private Equity Market

Over the last year, the global private equity industry witnessed a dramatic rnaround in fund valuations and deal activity,
During this period. improvements in the greater economy drove increases in public market comparables and growth in
underlying portfolio companies which resulted in augmented private equity net asset values.

As private equity typically lags events in the public markets. the market correction witnessed in August and September
2011 has not yet been fully reflected in the private equity industry. Increased public market volatility threatens 1o
negatively atfect private equity valuations, exits and fundraising efforts. owever. it may create more opportunity in the
secondary market as sellers seek liquidity.

In the calendar year from December 2009 to December 2010, private equity funds reported d weighted average increase
in net asset value ot 13.0% and values continued to climb into the second quarter of 2011.! Disruption in the capital
markets trom 2008 10 2010 significantly hindered private equity managers’ ability to profitably exit their investments. As
a result, managers retained mature investinents past their expected lifecycle. Since the second half of 2010, private equity
funds have been taking advantage of more favourable capital markets to clear the backlog of investments ready for exit.
In particular. the st.cond quarter of 2011 was a strong quarter with 309 private equity backed exits valued at US$120.1
billion, the highest quarter of all time.”

While increasing net asset values and exits bode well for the private equity industry, the fundraising environment 5(!“
remains challenging. In 2010 private equity fundraising levels hit a six year low with US$200 billion raised globally.®
The absence of distributions over the past three years has been one of the main causes of the challenging fundmmng
enviromment. Without returning capital to their limited partners, many private equity investors have not Imd fresh capital
lo commit to new funds. As exits increase. it is anticipated that the fundraising environment will improve.

Another challenge to the private equity industry is the current overhang of unfunded commitments. Funds raised Just
before the global credit crisis still have significant unused capital as they approach the end of their investment period.
Pr (.qm estimates that private equity managers have US$412 billion in unused capital available for investinent across the
globe.* Large amounts of dry powder, rebounds in the public stock market and access 10 cheap debt have resulted in
relatively high purchase multiples in the first half of 2011. According to the S&P LCD report, EBITDA purchase
multiples in the United States initially fell in 2009, but have since crept up ta levels seen in 2005 and 2006.° However,
market volatility in the third quarter of 2011 may drive purchase price multiples down again.

Average LBO Purchase Multiples®

120x

10.0x |
85x 85x

9.7x
9.1x 88
aa 8.4x
s 76x 78x & 7.7x
% 71x 71x 73 =
|64x I ‘ 57X 6.6x
00:" Ea g - = . ..r. g O e e e R g ey ey .,

199415 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 1H11 2Q11
(B34 QN (7Y (80 (133) (118) (51) (40) (88) (127) (134) (178) (07) (69) (23) (78) (49) (24)

Purchase Price/ EBITDA Multiple

" Fees/Expenses #Purchase Price

1 Pregin Private Lquity Pertbrmance Report, Fund Perfarmance Data as of Q4 2010, September 2011,

2. Pregin Press Release Q2 2011 Private Equity-Backed Deals.

3. The Imago Quarterly. June 2001,

4. Preqin Research Keport Q1 2011 Private Eqquity-Backed Deals, Apeil 201,

S.8&P 1LCDYs T everaged Buvout Review, 10 2011,

o Source Standard & Poor's LCD Group. 1L.CE's Leveraged Buvout Review - 2Q1 1 Total SourcesPro Forma Trailing EBITDA . Prior ro 2003, Media. Telecom Energy
and thilities deals exchided. Smee 2003, all ourlicrs excluded,
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Managers’ Report (continued)

Market Overview (continued)

Along with rising purchase price multiples, increased access to financing has pushed up the amount of debt used in
middle-market leveraged buyout transactions. Debt / EBITDA levels in middle market leverage buyout transactions have
rebounded 33% since 2009. JPEL seeks to invest in companies that have little to no debt. The average Deb/EBITDA
multiple of JPEL’s top 36 LBQ companies was 1.7x which compares to an average of d.dx Debt/EBITDA in middle
market LBO loans issued in the second quarter o 2011.!

Average Debt/EBITDA Multiples of Middle-Market LBO Loans’

6.0x
56x
4.8x —3
5.0x 4.7x 47x 47
= . | 4 5x 44
42x M| 4.2x X
41 40x - i 40x

40x 3 3 9x 3.8x
3.0x

20x

Debt/EBITDA Multipte

00x +

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 1H11 2Q11

Sub DebVEBITDA ®O0ther Sr DebVEBITDA ~ SLD/EBITDA wFLO/EBITDA

Secondary private equity market

The secondary market has undergone a transformation in the past few years. In 2008 and 2009 many private equity
professionals speculated that 4 large number of limited partners would seek to reduce their allocation to the asset class
due to the market dislocations experienced in 2008, During the 2009 calendar year, 20 secondary vehicles raised a total
of US$22.9 billion. dwarfing the sector’s previous high of US$13.9 billion in 2007.% Yet. the cxpected secondary deal
flow failed to materialise due to a significant pricing gap between buyers and sellers.

Secondary pricing seems to have reached a plateau in 2011, In the first half of 201 1, according to Cogent Partners, a sell-
side financial advisor, the average high bid across all funds was 84.5% of NAV, up slightly from 84.3% in the second
half of 2010. These values represent a significant increase from 2009 when the average high bid was approximately
69.0% of NAV.* As the pricing gap narrowed. secondary deal volume has increased sharply. The first half of 201 |
witnessed record breaking deal volume in the secondary market with an announced 165 secondary transactions valued at
$35.9 billion.” Much of this volume can be attributed to changes in the current regulatory environment. Schemes such as
Basel 111, Solvency 11 and the Volcker Rule have made it increasingly difficult for institutions to hold private instruments.
As result, there is @ mass migration out of illiquid investiments. In the current environiment, the Managers believe that
there is an opportunity to capitalise on broken investment structures and on smaller. distressed sellers that are now
seeking liquidity.

1. Svurce. Managers: Represents fargest onderlying buyout investments withm JPELs largest 30 underlying companics. Ruyout related investments represent 36 of JPEL’s
largest 30 investments and 33% ol total private equity investment value, Based ou 30 June 2011 wnaudited market value ol investinents as veleased on 16 August 2011, using
latest avatlable wnderlying company data af time of publication. )

2 Source Standard & Poor’s 1L.C1) Graup: LCI s 1 everaged Buyout Review  2Q11. Delined as issuers with ERITA of $50M or less  Excludes media and telecom loans.
EBITIA adjusted for prospective cost savings or synergics.

3. Preqin Spectal Report: Private Fquity Secondaries Market. May 2010

1 Cogenr Partners Secondary Pricing Trends & Analysis. July 201 Managers

3. Preqgin Press Release Q2 2011 Private Equity-Backed Deals.
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Managers’ Report (continued)

Market Overview (continued)

Summary

Although the recent economic cycle has been challenging. JPEL’s approach to investing has enabled the Company to
capitalise on unique opportunities in the secondary market. While JPEL operates in the greater context of the traditional
secondary market, the investment strategy focuses on smaller and more complex secondary investments where it has
been able to find attractively priced transactions at meaningful discounts to intrinsic value. JPEL is currently witnessing
robust deal flow in the US, Europe and Asia. In the US and Europe, investment opportunities tend to stem from
regulatory changes or broken shareholder bases, while in Asia the Company is focused on growth equity investments.
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Managers’ Report (continued)
2011 Investment Activity

The Conmpany remains extremely selective in deploying capital due to ongoing economic volatility and unrealistic seller
expectations.  During the past twelve months, JPEL acquired nine new investments with an aggregate cost of $41.1
million.

US Investments

Over the course of the fiscal yvear, JPEL made three investments in debt backed by US middle market companies. The
first investinent was in a leading ATM deplovment company. JPEL also invested in a nationwide provider of vehicle
logistics. Base case projected internal rate of return for these two investiments are approximaiely 20%. Given significant
cash flow and structural protections, the Managers believe these investments represent superior risk adjusted returns,
JPEL’s third secondary direct investment in second lien debt is supported by a provider of integrated air cargo
transportation and aviation support services.  In November 2010, JPEL closed an investment in a distressed real estate
opportinity in the United States, representing $6.3 million in purchase price. JPEL was able to purchase the underlying
assets at approximately one third of the replacement cost and less than 50% of the construction funding advanced on the
project. During March 2011, the property was conservatively refinanced resulting in a return of 45% of the initial
investment made in November.

In lune 2011, JPEL commited $3 million to Industry Ventures VI, L.P. a leading private equity firm specialising in
venture related secondary investments. This investment imarks JPEL’s fourth investinent in a fund sponsored by Industry
Ventures.

European Investments

In August 2010, JPEL completed a secondary direct investment in a business that acquires run-off insurance portfolios.
As part of this transaction. the underlying investment will acquire three run-off portfolios at significant discounts to net
asset value.

In December 2010. the Company completed one secondary direct investment in one of Europe's leading industrial
flooring companies with extensive business in Latin America.  IPEL was able to make this investment at an attractive
valuation due to the lignidity needs of three diverse sellers: a liquidating hedge fund, a bank prop desk seeking liquidity.
and a European construction company.

Emerging Market Investments

In October 2010, JPEL purchased a secondary interest, at a discount to reported value, in Blue River Capital 1, LLC
(“Blue River™). The largest asset in the Blue River portfolio is one of the largest road construction and toll operators in
India. This company registered over 30% revenue and EBITDA growth for the first six months of its fiscal year 2011,

In June 2011, JPEL completed a minority investment in a Middle Eastern healthcare company, buying out an existing
investor seeking liquidity. In July 2011, JPEL invested turther capital in the wansaction via a growth equity investment.
JPEL views the deal as compelling due to a low entry value, minimal deb, and significant near-term growth prospects.
JPEL baught into the healthcare company at a significant discount to comparable companies in the Middle East.

Recent Investments, Post 30 June 2011

Subsequent to the period, on 16 August 2011, JPEL entered into a conditional agreement with the SPL Funds' to acquire
a portlolio of middle-market co-investments in an all-share acquisition valued at £36.5 million (approaimately 1S$$91.9
million).  The Co-Investment Port{olio consists ol a diversified pool of 38 investinents with leading European middle-
market fund managers primarily invested in the UK. Germany and France. The transaction closed on 12 September
2011, '

Key highlights include:

e 100% of purchase price paid to SPL Funds comprised of JPEL US$ Equity and New 2017 ZDP Shares
o 65% in new USS Equity Shares issued at JPEL’s unaudited 30 June NAV of $1.34 per share
o 35% in new class of Zero Dividend Preference Shares due 2017 with an 8.23% GRY.

Fincludes Private Equity (PEIYVIC Lid, SPL Private Eguity (PE2YIC Ltd, and SPL Integrated Fmance (PE3 IC L), collectively “SPL Funds”™,
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Managers’ Report (continued)

Portfolio Review

Since the Company’s inception on 30 June 2005, JPEL s portfolio has grown to include 108 separate fund interests, |2
co-investments and six funds of funds. With a private equity value of $659.6 million. JPEL's portfolio is diversified
globally across multiple investment strategies and industries as at 30 June 2011,

Investment Type'”
JPEL’s portfolio is primarily composed of “highly funded
assets”™ which include assets acquired in the secondary
market and funded primary investinents. In total these

o assets  represent 92% of the portfolio.  Secondary.

Funded Primary .y secondary direct and funded primary investinents represent
8% Primary Direct 68%, 16% and 8% of the portfolio, respectively. Secondary

1% : >

direct investments are opportunities where IPEL was able
to buyout existing shareholders in a single company or co-
investinent. while primary direct investments represent
investiments in which JPEL participated in a new round of
cquity. Funded primary investments are portfolios that are
partially invested at the time of investment and tend (o
produce distributions and NAV growth more quickly since
they are further along the private equity “J-Curve™.

Secondary
Direct
16%

From time to time. JPEL may make a primary commitment
to a tund, primarily as part of a secondary transaction. As
at 30 June 2011, primary and primary direct investments
together made up 8% of JPEL s portfolio.

Secondary
68%

Investment Strategy'?

Buyout Fund Sizes?

Infrastructure
Real Estate 3%

mega |arge
3% 4%

Currently, buyout finds constitute approximately $3% of JPEL’s portfolio. Within this strategy. the majority of the
Company’s investments are with fund managers that focus on small to medium sized buyouts, which generally utilize
less leverage. As previously mentioned. JPEL’s exposure to medium sized buyouts has increased since the completion of
the Co-Investinent Portfolio transaction.

JPEL maintains a 23% allocation to special situation funds which includes mezzanine. debt, turnaround and distressed
funds that tend to fare better in constricted markets. Infrastructure, real estate and venture capital funds represent 3%.
9% and 10% of private equity net asset value, respectively.

I Based on 30 June 20011 unaudited market value ol mvestments as released on 16 August 2011, using underlving lund-level values.

2 Fund classtfications for buyout strategy is based on total fund commitments: Small: $0 - $500 million: Mednun: $S00 - $2,000 millinn, Large: $2,000 millios - $3 000
million; Mega over $5.000 million. Co-invesiments allocated by size ot undertying spensor fimd,

3 The graphs on investmentivpe and invesunent strategy ol the Portfolio Review form an integral pant of the consolidated financial statements: Refer w note 2
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Managers’ Report (continued)

Portfolio Review (continued)

Portfolio Age'

Average Age of Portfolio

by Investment Strategy
Average age of investments 4.8 years
® Buyout investments: 4.3 years
Small buyout: 4.2 years
Medium buyout: 4.3 years
Large buyout: 4.6 years
Mega buyouts: S.1 years
® Venture Capital investments: 7.6 years
® Real state investments: 5.9 years
= Special Sitvarions: 4.2 years
® |nfrastructure investments: 4.9 years

Geographic Footprint™

Row
4%

21% North
America
34%

Europe
41%

1 Source: Managers. Based on 50 June 2011 unaudited market value of mvestments as released on 16 Aungust 2011, using underlymg company-level values. Averay

J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

When making investiment decisions, IPEL seeks imore
mature assets that have good potential for near-term exits.
With an average age of 4.8 years, JPEL’s portfolio is well
positioned on the private equity “J-Curve” to receive
distributions once M&A and PO markets normalize.  As
venture assets often take longer to develop, JPEL’s venture
capital investments have a more mature weighted average
life of 7.6 years.

Constructing a geographically diversified portfolio is one
of the central principles of JPEL's investment strategy.
JPEL’s private equity portfolio is diversified with
investments in approximately 35 countries. helping to
mitigate country and regional risk as well as to capitalise
on the growth of expanding economies.

Europe and North America represent the majority of the
Company’s porttolio at 41% and 34%, respectively.

JPEL’s allocation 10 Asia stands at 21% while
investinents in the rest of the world represent 4% of the
portfolio.

age of

investments is based on the date in which each individual portfolio company investment was mace. subject to availability.  Weighting ix based on underlying portfolio
company level values. Age caleolated at 30 Junc 2081, Average is weighted based on investments at market value as a1 30 June 201 1. percentages hased on underlymg
company-level values.
2 Based on 30 June 2011 unaudited market value of invesnnents as refeased on 16 Angust 2011, pereentages based on underlying company-level values.
3 "The graph on geographic footpring of the Portfolio Review form an integral part of the consolidaled financial statenenis. Refer 1o note 2.
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Managers’ Report (continued)

Portfolio Review (continued)

Industry Composition'?

J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

RealE: 10.6%
Pharma, Biotech & Life Sci 9.3%
Health Care Equipment & Services | 9.0%
Capital Goods B.7%
Media 87%
d Services 6.5%
[« Ourables & Apparel | 6.1%
Retailing 47%
Software & Services 46%
C Services 4.1%
Commercial Services & Suppli 38%
Energy 3.6%
Transportation 33%
Diversified Fi ial 29%
Materials esmss——— 2 3%
Food, Beverage & Tob . 2.0%
Utilities s 1 5%
Tel Services 13%
Food & Staples Retailing pessssssew 1.1%
Broadcasting & Cable TV s 1 0%
Insurance |Emmm——— 10%
d s & E 0.9%
A biles & Ci 0.9%
Technology Hard & 0.7%
Household & Personal Products 0.6%
Real Estate investment Trusts 05%
Banks =04% T TS . — e e
0.0% 2.0% 4.0% 6.0% 8.0% 10.0% 120%
% of Private Equity

In addition to geographic diversification. the Managers diversify JPELs portfolio by industry composition. No single
industry represents more than 1% of the current portfolio.

Public Market Exposure®

Public
8%

Private
92%

JPEL’s exposure to the public markets is primarily
derived from investments in private companics that are
subsequently taken public.

As at 30 Junc 2011, 8% of JPEL’s private equity
portfolio was held in publicly listed companies.

1 Based on 30 June 201 unaudued market value of investments as refeased on 16 August 2011, pereentages based onounderlying company-losel values.

2 Based on 30 June 2011 unandited marker value of investments as released on 16 August 2011, percentages based on underlying company-level values. Please reler to page
o1 of the financial statements tor public market exposure on the Group Level

3 The graphs on Industry Composition and Public Market Expostre of the Portfolio Review form un integral part of the consolidated Nnancial stauements, Refer w note 2.
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Managers’ Report (continued)
Portfolio Review: Co-Investment Portfolio Acquisition

The acquisition of the Co-Investment Portfolio will enhance JPEL’s portfolio and offer the potential to increase the
Compuny’s cash position through distributions.

Co-Investment Portfolio at 30 June 2011

¢ Co-Invesiment Portfolio was purchased in September
2011 Jor £56.5 million’

Ital D ConnrIte COvec e ) > A1
Switzerland 4%}’ e 2 sepurate co-investment funds (2007 Fund & 2008

% France Fund)

e 38 individual mature co-investments {average age is 3.6

Germany years)y”
17% . . .
e Faposure to mid market buyout investments (100% of
portfolio)
UK e Low unfunded commitment (~£6.9 mm)

55%
e [Ixposurc to UK., Germany and France (92% of
portlolio)

Adjusted JPEL Portfolio at 30 June 2011

When the Co-Investiment Portfolio is included in JPELs existing portfohio it will enhance JPEL’s exposure to European
buyout funds.

Geographic Diversification® Investnient Strategy’

Infra-
EReatI tructure
state 5o

8%

Venture
Small
Buyout
38%

Buyout |4 rge Medium
3%  Buyout B:Jg;ut
3% °

I Source: Managers. Co-lnvestment Portfolio information as al 30 June 2011,

2 IPEL and the SPL Funds have entered inlo an Economic Transier Agreement relating to 2 interests within the Co-Investwent Partfolio. Pursuant to the Economic Transfer
Agreviment, JPEL will retain record and tegad ownership of the televant ownership inferests in accordace with the terms of the Acquisition Agreement but will fransler to the
SPL Funds all ceonomic rights, benetits and obligations in and 1o those ownership mterests.

3 Source: Managers. Based on 30 June 2011 unaudited market value of mvesinenss as relcased on 16 August 2001 Co-lovesiment Porttolio information as at 30 June

2001 CGeographic diverstfication reflects underlying company level values. For puposes of diversification, Ce-fovestment Portfolio geography is classified as “Europe ” and
“Medim Buyout”,
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Managers’ Report (continued)

Portfolio Review: Co-Investment Portfolio Acquisition (continued)

The acquisition of the Co-Investment Portfolio adds exposure to mature assets managed by leading fund managers
primarily invested in the UK, Germany and France.

Co-Investment Portfolio Diversification by Fund Manager at 30 June 2011'

Co-Investment

Fund Name Portfolio'” The top 5 Fund Managers represent 92.6% of the Co-

1 Duke Streel 39.6% Investment  Portfolio. while the top 3 individual

2 Barclays Private Equity 17.7% company  exposures  represent 48.6% of the Co-

3 3§ 15.5% Investment Portfolio.! 2

4 Milestone Capital Partners 12.3%
S Equivest 7.5%
6 GCP Capital Partners 2.1%
7 P M & Partners 2.1%
8 Penta Capital 2.1%
9 TCR 0.6%
10 ICEO Capital 0.6%
Total 100.0%

Co-Investment Portfolio Diversification by Industry”?

Software & Services T I S 5%
Household & Personal Products ‘_ 12.8%
Health Care Equipment & Services _ 12.0%
Retailing I 11 6%
Pharmaceuticals, Biotechnology & Life Sciences _ 6.8%
Capital Goods _ 6.3%
Automobiles & Components TN g 3%
Consumer Services _ 5.2%
Consumer Durables & Apparel _ 4.4%
Materials [ERNEREENN 38%
Commercial Services & Supplies .‘— 2.2%
Food & Staples Retailing _ 2.1%
Media h 1.9%
Utilities _ 1.9%
Technology Hardware & Equipment IIINN 1 8%
Energy I- 13%
Transportation l 0.2%
Food, Beverage & Tobacco  0.0%
00% 2.0% 4.0% 6.0% 8.0% 100% 12.0% 14.0% 16.0% 18.0% 20.0%

% of Private Equity

t The numbers may aot add duc 10 rounding .

2 JPTEL and the SPL Fands have entered imo an Economic Transier Agreement refating to 2 interests within the Co-Investment Portfolio. Pursuan to the Feonomic Transfer
Agreement, JPEL will rerain record and legal ownership of the relevans ownership inerests in accordance with the terms of the Acquisition Agreement but will transter ro the
SPL Funds all eeonomic rights, benefits and obligations in and to those wwnership interests
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Managers’ Report (continued)
Capital Calls and Distributions

J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as al 30 June 2011

IPEL invests with a goal of delivering consistent NAV growth and generating a high level of distributions.

Selected Capital Call and Distribution Summary'~

$25.0 ;

$22.3

$20.0 -

$15.0 -

$in millions

$10.0 1

$5.0 -

2Q2008 3Q2009 4Q2009

1Q2010

mCapital Calls

2Q2010

$18.6 $18.9

$5.

3Q 2010

2Q 2011

4Q2010 1Q 2011

u Distributions

After a dearth of distributions in 2008 and 2009, in the second calendar quarter of 2010 JPEL’s distributions outpaced
capital calls for the first time since the second quarter of 2008. Subsequently. JPEL’s portfolio produced four quarters of
net positive cash flow. Over the twelve months to 30 June 2011, JPEL has received $74.5 million of distributions versus

$46.3 million of capital calls.

- - 1
Cash Flow Breakout'?

Cuash Flows by Investment Strategy
(12 months ending 30 June 2011)

$35.0 $32.5
$30.0

$25.0

$in millions
o “ws
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" o
o o
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e
]
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Real Estate

Buyout Special Situtions

m Capital Calls m Distributions

$in millions

Venture Capital Infrastructure

$35.0

$30.0

$25.0

$20.0

$15.0

$10.0 -
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Cash Flows by Geographic Region
(12 months ending 30 June 2011)

$30.7

$214
$19.2

$7.8 $8.1

| $6.1

$21

$0.0

0y
_,_ -

Row

North America Europe Asia

w Capital Calls m Distributions

In the past year the majority of JPEL’s capital calls and distributions have been from the North America and buyout

sections of the portfolio,

P Source: Managers  Based on 30 June 201 1 unaudited marker value of mvestments as released on 16 Augnst 2011,
2 The graphs on Selecied Capital Call and Distribution Sumimany and Cash Flow Breakeut form an integral part of the consolidaied financial statemeins. Refer to note 2,
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Managers’ Report (continued)
Currency Exposure

The Managers continue to monitor JPEL’s exposure to foreign currencies and take currency exposure into consideration
when making investment decisions.  The currency composition of JPEL’s portfolio may change as the Company
continues to pursue an invesiment policy focused on geographic diversification.

Currency Composition'”

As at 30 Jlune 2011, investments held in US Dollars
made up approximately $5% of JPEL’s private equity
market value.  Investments held in Euros comprised
33% of the private equity portfolio, while the Australian
Dollar, Sterling. and UAE Dirham represented 8%, 3%
and 1% of the portfolio. respectively.

Cash Account Holdings™

JPEL ended the fiscal year with total cash balances of
3% $37.0 million. In addition to the cash held on the

: balance sheet at year end. JPEL had the ability 10 draw
a further $20.2 million from its credit tacility.

EUR GBP
4%

5]

n

The Company holds the majority of its cash balance in
US Dollars to mitigate the impact of foreign currency
volatility. As at 30 June 2011, approximately 93% of
JPEL’s cash balance was held in US Dollars, 4% in
Euros and 3% in Sterling.

usb
93%

1 Based an 30 June 2011 wnaudited market vahie of investments s refeased on 16 August 2011, percentages based on underdying fund-level values. Please refer to page 31
of the financial statcments for ner currency exposure on the Group Level.

2 Based on cash haldings on the company-level at 30 fune 2011, Please refer to page S0 of the consolidated financial statements for cash holdings on the Group Level,

3 The graphs on Currency Compaosition and Cash Account Holdings form an integral part of the vonsolidared financial statements, Refer (o note 2.
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Managers’ Report (continued)
Top 20 Funds & Companies Information

Top 20 Funds'?

~N O A B W N —

SEGS I3

>

17
18
19
20

Avista Capital Partners (Offshore), 1.1,
Liberty Partners 11, 1.1,

Life Sciences Holdings SPV 1 Fund. 1D,
Milestone Link Fund, L.P.

Alcentra Euro Mezzanine Nol Fund 1.1,

Hutton Collins Capital Purtners 11 1P
Ahwnack Mczzanine | Fund 1P,

GSC European Meczanine Fund 11 L.P,
Macquarie Alternative Investment Trust 11

cgion

North Amcrica
North Anterica
Eorope

Europe
Europe
Europe
Europe
LFurope
Asia

J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Fund Strategy

Yo of Private

Equity
Investments

Esprit Capital 1 Fund
Omega Fund 1. L.P.

Macquaric Wholesale Co-investment FFund

Beacon India Private Equity Fund
Argan Capital Fund

Strategic Value Global Opporlunitics Master Fund

Catalyst Buyout Fund 1

Guggenheim Aviation Otfshore Investment Fund 1

Cilobal Opportunistic Fund
Blue River Capitat 1, 1LLC
l.eeds Equity Partners 1V, 1D,

Lurope
Europe

Asia
Asia

Furope

North Amenca

Asia

North America

Other
Asia

North Amgrica

Buyout 39%
Buyout 3.3%
Venture Capital 3.2%
[Buyout 2.7%
Special Situations 2.5%
Special Situations 2.3%
Special Situalions 2.2%
Special Situations 1.9%%
Buyout 1.8%
Venture Capitad 1.8%
Venture Capital 1.7%
Buyout 1 7%
Buyout 1.6%
Buvout 1.6%
Special Situations 1.6%
Buyout 1.5%
Speaial Situations 1.5%
Buyout 1.4%,
Buyout 1.4%
Buyout 1.4%

Top 20 Companies'”

Company

Country

Yo of Private

hoda e 2 —

Ko~ N

10
H
l"
14
IS
16
17
18
19
20

Deutsche Anuington tmmobilicn Group

China Mcedia Enterprises Limited
RCR Industrial S.a.r1

Liducation Management Corporation
FibroGen

Concorde Career Colleges, Inc,
WinnCare

Paratck

InterFloor

WP Internutional Plc

Lvergreen International Aviation
Gt Healtheare International 1LC
Back Bay (Guernsey) Limited
Nvcomed

Rebel Group

Step 2 Holdings LLC

Liveris Spain

Healtheare at Home

KMC Constructions Limited
}.anthcus

Germany
(‘hina
Furope

USA
£ISA
France
USA
United Kingdom
Ireland
LUSA
United Arab Umirates
USA
Denmark
Australia
USA
Spain
United Kingdom
India
LISA

Industry Group DTITEAY
luvestments

Real Estare 7.3%
Media 6.9%
Construction & Engineering 2.7%
Diversified Consumer Services 2.6%
Biotechnology 2.3%
Diversified Consumer Services 2.1%
Health Care Equipment & Supplics 2.0%
Pharmaceuticals 1.5%
Houschold Durables 1.2%
Household Products 1.2%
Alr [reight & Logistics 1.0%
Health Care Providers & Services 0.9%
Real Fsraie 0.9%
Phammaccuticals 11.9%%
Distributors 0.7%
Leisure Lquipment & Products 0.7%
Software 0.7%
Health Care Equipment & Services 0.7%
Construction & Engineering 0.6%
Health Carc Equipment & Supplics 0.6%

1 Top 20 Funds and Top 20 Comnpanies inclide underlying funds and companies indirectly owned through the purchase of secondary mrerest in Private Equity Access Fund
1t Ltd, Bear Stearns Global Tumaround Fund, 1.1, BoS Mcrvanine Partoers Fund, 1.1, (RoS company-leve! exposure includes estimated pro rated Tund-level feverage). and
Macquaric Private Capital Trust. Following the acquisition after the tiscal year end, 6 underlying company mvestments within the Co-Investment Portfolio would have
appeared in JPLL's adjusted top 20 Company list,
2 Percentages ave caleuluted based on 30 June 2011 imaudited market value of investments as released on 16 Angust 2011,
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Managers’ Report (continued)
Top 10 Investments'

JPEL’s ten largest investments are diversified across a broad range of inanagers and investment strategies. In total, these
ten investinents account for $248.3 million, or 37.6% of total private equity investment value, at 30 lune 2011.

{. Terra Firma Deutsche Annington, L.P.

Spousor
Geographic Focus
Investment Type
Investment Strategy
Date of luvestment
Current NAY

% of NAY

Terra Finma
Lurope
Sccondary

Real Lstate
December 2008
$49 4 million
7.5%

Terra Firma Deutsehe Anninglon, L. targels acquisilions in
the German residential real estale markel. with a primary
imvestment  in Deuwtsche  Annington  Inmnobilien  Group
CDAIG™. With approximately 230.000 leased and managed
properties, DALG is the largest German residential housing
company.

2. China Media Enterprises Limited?

Sponsor
Geographic Foeus
Investment Type
Investment Strategy
Date of Investment
Current NAY

% of NAV

Whule Capital
Asia
Co-Investment
Buyout
IFebruary 2010
$43.2 million
6.9'.”6

China Media Enterprises Limited is an outdoor adverlising
company located in Hong Kong and mainland China.

3. Avista Capital Partners (Offshore), L.P.

Sponsor
Geographic Focus
Investment Type
Investment Strategy
Date of Investment
Current NAY

% of NAY

Avista Capital Partners
North America
Funded Primary
Buyout

June 2007

$25.5 million

3.99

‘.
24

Avista Capilal Partners  makes  controlling  or  influential
minorily investments  in energy.  healthcare.  and  media
companies. The Fund aims 1o creale  value through
consolidation, cost and management cfficiency.

4. Liberty Partners 11, L.P.

Sponsor
Geographic Focus
Investment Type
Investment Straregy
Date of Investmment
Current NAY

Yo of NAV

Liberty Parlners
North Amcrica
Secondary
Buyout

May 2008
$21.5 million

3 3%

Liberty Partners 11 specializes in middle-market private cquity
investmenls in education. specialty manufacturing and business
services companics,

5. Life Sciences Holdings SPV 1 Fund, L.P.

Spensor
Geographic Focus
Investment Type
Investment Strategy
Date of Investment
Current NAV

% of NAV

Oinega Funds
Lurope
Secondary
Venture Capital
June 2009

$2 1.2 million
3.2%

Life Sciences Holding SPV 1 Funds, 1..P. is a holding vehicle
for an investinent in a secondary portfolio of Furopean life
scicnee companics.

I Top 10 Investments include lund investiments and direct investments by sive Also includes interests indirectly owned thisugh the purchase of secondary interests
A b # )

2 Represents the net asset value of IPEL s investment in China Media Enlerprises Limited, versus the gross asset value of $54.6 million shown on page 74 of the Fancial

Stutements,
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Top 10 Investments' (continued)

J.P. Morgan Private Equily |.imited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 201 |

6. RCR Industrial S.a.r.l.

Sponsor
Geographic Focus
Investment Type
Investment Strategy
Date of Investinent
Current NAY

% of NAY

Columna Cupital
I-urope
Co-lnvestment
Buyout

Janvary 2011
$17.7 million
2.7%

RCR Industrial S.a.r.l. is a global market leader for industrial
flooring solutions. The Company is headquartered in Spain and
operates in Europe. Latin America and Africa.

7. Milestone Link Fund, L.P.

Sponsor
Geographie Focus
Investment Type
Investment Strategy
Date of Investment
Current NAY

Y of NAY

Milestone Capital
Europe
Secondary
Buyout
Seplember 2009
$17.6 million

2.7%

Milestone Link Fund, L.P. is a 2002 vintage ycar buyout fund
wilh positions in 1wo Buropean companies. The portfolio is
comprised of a healtheare equipment provider in France and a
UK manufacturer and  distributor of” underlay and tlooring
accessories.

8. Education Management Corporation

Sponsor
Geographic FFocus
Investment Type
Investment Strategy
Date of Investment
Current NAV

% of NAV

Leeds Equity Parlners
North Amcerica
Co-lnvestment
Buyout

September 2008
$17.0 million

2.6%

Education Management Corporation is among the largest for
profit providers of post-secondary education in North America,
It offers a broud range of academic programs concentrated in
the media arts. design, fashion, culinary arts, behavioural
sciences, health sciences. education, information technelogy.
legul studies and business ficlds.,

9. Alcentra Euro Mezzanine No. 1 Fund, L.P.2

Sponsor
Geographic Focus
lavestment Type
Investment Strategy
Date of Investment
Current NAY

% of NAY

Alcenira

Lurope
Secondary
Special Situations
May 2007

$16.5 million
2.5%

Alcentra lZuro Mezzanine No. 1 Fund. L.P. turgets mezzanine
and mezzanine-related investments in privately-owned, cash
generative business in Lurope with enterprise values in excess
ol €75 million,

10.  Hutton Collins Capital Partners 11, L.P.

Sponsor
Geographie Focus
Investment Type
[nvestment Strategy
Date of Investment
Current NAV

% 0f NAV

Hutton Collins
lurope

Primary

Special Situations
April 2006

$15. 1million
2.3%

Huuon Collins Capital Partners 11, 1..P. provides structured
cquity capital of buyouts, recapitalizations and cxpansions in a
variety of industries across Lurope.  Hutton Colling takes both
equily and subordinaled (mczzanine or  otherwisey  debl
posilions in its invesiments to provide optimized risk-adjusted
retuimns. .

Bear Stearns Asset Management, Ine,
JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited

Date: 31 October 2011

1 Top 10 fnvestmenrs include tand mvestments and direct investinems by size. Also includes interests divectly owned through the purchase of secondary mterests.
2 Adeenira Euro Mezzanine No 1 Fand. 1 P is owned through JPEL’s investment in BoS Mezzamne Partners Fund. LP.
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Consolidaled Financial Statements as al 30 June 2011

Investment Policy

Asser Allocation

The majority of the Company Porttolio is allocated to buyout funds, and the balance to venture capital, real estate
and multi-style funds.

* A buyout fund typically targets the acquisition of a significant portion or majority control of businesses
which normally entails a change of ownership. Buyout funds ordinarily invest in more mature
companies with established business plans to finance expansions, consolidations, turnarounds and sales,
or spinouts of divisions or subsidiaries. A leveraged buyout. commonly referred to as a LBO, is a
buyout that uses debt financing to fund a portion of the purchase price of the targeted business.

e Venture capital refers to private equity capital typically provided to early-stage, high-potential growth
companies.

® A multi-style investment strategy refers to fund managers that make investments in companies in
various stages of development. A multi-style manager may make investments in start-up enterprises,
later-stage venture companies and established businesses -- all within the same fund. These investments
may involve control positions or may be minority, passive positions.
By investing in a porttolio of private equity funds. the Company is exposed to numerous underlying investments
in individual companies. ranging from start-up ventures to large, multi-national enterprises. The Managers will
endeavour to purchase private equity fund interests and co-investments in the secondary market to ensure that
JPEL’s portfolio contains investments that will be made and exited in different economic cycles.

The Company may invest capital not otherwise allocated to private equity into near cash and other investments.
The Company, in the Managers® discretion, may invest in a wide variety of investments and other financial
instruments.

The Company will not enter into derivative transactions (such as options, futures and contracts for difference)
other than for the purposes of efficient portfolio management.

The Company will not take any legal or management control of any underlying company or fund in the Company
Portfolio.

Risk Diversification

The Managers actively monitors the Company Portfolio and attempts to mitigate risk primarily through
diversification. Not more than 20% of the Company’s Net Asset Value, at the time of investment. is permitted to
be invested in any single investment. For the avoidance of doubt. if the Company acquires a porttolio of
companies in a single transaction, this limitation shall be applied individually to each of the underlying
companies purchased and not to the portfolio as a whole.

Leverage

The Company has the ability to borrow up to 20% of its Adjusted Total of Capital and Reserves subject to and in
accordance with the limitations and conditions in its Articles. As part of its leverage policy, the Company may
borrow for short-term or temporary purposes as is necessary for settlement of transactions, to facilitate the
operation of the over-commitment policy or to meet ongoing expenses. The Directors and the Managers will not
incur any short-term borrowings to facilitate any tender or redemption of Shares unless such borrowings have a
repayment period of 180 days or less. The Company is indirectly exposed to borrowings to the extent that
subsidiaries and underlying tunds in its portfolio are themselves leveraged.

www.jpelonline.com



J.P. Morgan Private Equily Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 Junc 2011

Directors’ Report

Introduction

The Directors present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of J.P. Morgan Private
Equity Limited (“the Company™) and its subsidiaries, together (the “Group™) for the year ended 30 June 2011, The
financial summary is set out on page 2. A detailed review of activities is contained in the Managers® Report on pages
12 10 25.

The Directors believe 1hat Bear Stearns Asset Management Inc (“BSAM Inc”), and JPMorgan Asset Management
(UK) Limited (“IPMAM UK™) (together “the Managers™), subsidiaries of JPMorgan Chase & Co have performed
credibly since being appointed as the Managers of the Company.

Principal Activity
The Company's primary activity is that of an investment company investing in private equity funds and subsidiaries.

Going Concern

The Directors have examined significant areas of possible financial risk and have satisfied themselves that no material
exposures exist. The Directors therefore consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foresecable future and after due consideralion believe it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements.

Corporate Governance

Principles Statement

The Directors are committed 10 high standards of corporate governance and have made it the Company’s policy to
comply wilh best practice in this arca, insofar as the Directors believe it is relevant and appropriate 10 the Company.
and in compliance with the ‘UK Corporate Governance Code’ (i.e. the Code of Best Practice published by the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC). in respect of a financial year beginning on or after 29 June 2010. on the Financial
Aspects of Corporate Governance). The complete UK Corporate Governance Code can be viewed on the Financial
Reporting Council website ar http://www.fre.org.uk.

During the Financial year the Directors decided that it would be beneficial to the Company to become a member of’
the Association of Investment Companies. The Directors have considered the principles and recommendations of the
Association of Investinent Companies Code of Corporate Governance (“AlC Code™) by reference to the Association
of Investment Companies Corporate Governance Guide for Investiment Companies (“AlC Guide™). The AIC Code, as
explained by the AIC Guide, addresses all the principles set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code. as well as
setting out additional principles and recommendations on issues that are of specific relevance to the Company. The
Directors consider reporting against principles and recommendations of the AIC Code, by reference to the AIC Guide
(which incorporates the UK Corporate Governance Code), will provide better information to sharcholders.

Role of the Board
The Board has determined that its role is to consider and determine the following principal maiters which it considers
are of strategic importance to the Company:

* review the overall objectives for the Company as described in the prospectus and set the Company*s strategy
for fulfilling those objectives within an appropriate risk framework:

e consider any shifis in strategy that it considers may be appropriate in light of market conditions;

o review the capital structure of the Company including consideration of an appropriate use of gearing both for
the Company and in any joint ventures in which the Company may invest in from time to time:

e evaluate its own performance and that of the individual Directors:

e appoint the Managers. Adminisirator and other appropriately skilled service providers and monitor their
effectiveness through regular reports and meetings: and

e review key elements of the Company’s performance including NAV and payment of dividends.

Other than Christopher Spencer who owns 30,067 USS$ Equity Shares, no other Director holds directly or indirectly
shares in the Group.

From 1 Junuary 2007 Mr. Ash is entitled to receive Directors fees of £25,000 per annum. Mr. Loudon and Mr.

Spencer are each entitled to receive Directors fees of £20,000 per annum. Mr Getschow has waived his right to
Directors fees.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equily Limited
Consolidaled Financial Slatements as at 30 June 2011

Directors’ Report (continued)
Corporate Governance (continued)

From | January 2011 Mr. Ash is entitled to receive Directors fees £40,000 per annum, Mr. Loudon and Mr. Spencer
are each entitled to receive Directors fees of £30,000 per annum. Mr Getschow has waived his right to Directors Fees.

Board Decisions

AL its Board meetings. the Boardensures that all the strategic matters listed under *Role of the Board' are considered
and resolved by the Board. While issues associated with implementing the Company’s strategy are generally
considered by the Board to be non strategic in nature and are delegated either to the Managers or the Administrator,
the Board considers that there are implementation matters that are significant enough to be of strategic importance to
the Company and should be reserved to the Board (e.g. investiments made by the Company).

Directors, Rotation of Directors and Directors Tenure
The Directors listed below were all appointed on 28 April 2003 except where detailed below:

Trevor Charles Ash

John Loudon

Christopher Paul Spencer

Gregory Getschow (appointed 11 June 2009)

The UK Corporate Governance Code recommends that Directors should be appointed for a specified period. Mr
Getschow will be put forward for re-election as an executive Director of the Company on an annual basis and the
other directors on a three year basis.

Directors Interests
Mr. Gregory Getschow is a senior executive of Bear Stearns Asset Management Inc.. one of the Managers to the
Group and a subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co. Other than Christopher Spencer who owns 30,067 USS Equity
Shares, no other Director holds directly or indirectly shares in the Company.

Audit Committee

The Board as a whole fulfils the function of an audit committee in relation 10, amongst other things, monitoring the
internal controls and risk management systems of the Company and its service providers. reviewing the financial
statements of the Company, monitoring the independence of the auditor and the effectiveness of the audit process and
reviewing the findings of the external auditor. The Board considers that. given its size and the size of the Company, it
would not be appropriate to establish a separate audit committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Board as a whole fulfils the function of a remuneration commitiee in relation to the setting and periodic review of
the fees of the Directors and the Chairman, taking into account, amongst other factors, prevailing market conditions
and the need to attract to the Board, and retain thereatier, suitable persons. The Board considers that, given its size
and the size of the Company, it wonld not be appropriate 10 establish a separate remuneration cominittee.

Nomination Committee
The Board as a whole tulfils the function of a nomination committee. The Board considers that. given its size and the
size of the Company, it would not be appropriate 10 establish a separate nomination committee.

Board Meetings
Fhe Board meets quarterly and as required from time to time to consider specific issues reserved to the Board. At the
quarterly meetings it considers papers circulated seven days in advance including reports provided by the Managers
and the Administrator. The Managers™ report comments on: '

*  The investment market including recommendations for any changes in strategy that the Managers consider

may be appropriate;

e Performance of the Company’s portfolio and key asset management initiatives:

*  Transactional activity undertaken over the previous quarter and being contemplated for the future; and

®  The Company’s financial position including its relationship with its bankers and lenders.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
Corporate Governance (continued)

‘The Administrator provides a compliance report at each quarterly meeting.
These reports enable the Board to assess the success with which the Company’s investment strategy and other
associated matters are being implemented and also to consider any relevant risks and how they should properly be

managed.

The below table shows the attendance at Board meetings during the year to 30 June 201 1.

Quarterily Board Other Ad-hoc Board
Meetings Attended Meetings
Attended
Trevor Charles Ash 4 4
John Loudon I ]
Christopher Paul Spencer 4 2
Gregory Getschow 2 6
No. of meetings during the year 4 8

In between its regular quarterly meetings, the Board has also met on a number of occasions during the year to
approve specific corporate actions such as approve the issuance of additional shares. It has not always been
possible for all Directors to attend these meetings. (Note — The Company maintains liability insurance for its
Directors and Officers although the Company has no employees and none of its Directors are Executive.)

Internal Controls
The Directors review the effectiveness of the Company s system of internal controls at least once annually.

The key internal controls reviewed by the Directors are as shown below. The Board considers risk management and
internal control on a regular basis during the year although such a system can only provide reasonable and noi
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as it is designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of
failure.

Investment management services and administration services are provided to the Group by IP Morgan Asset
Management (UK) Limited. Bear Stearns Asset Management Inc, and HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited
("HMG?), respectively. The Company’s system of internal control therefore is substantially reliant on the
Managers’ and HMG’s internal controls and their internal audil.

The key clements designed to provide effective control are as follows:

* TFinancial reporting — A regular review of relevant financial data including NAV calculations and
performance projections.

e Management and Administration Agreements — Contractual documentation with appropriately regulated
entities which clearly describes responsibilities for the two principal service providers.

e Management Systems — The Managers’ systemn of internal controls is based on clear written processes, a
formal investment committee and clear lines of responsibility and reporting, all of which are monitored by
the Managers internal risk team.

* Investment Sirategy -~ The Company’s strategy is authorised and monitored on a regular basis by the Board.

Managers
The Group entered into an amended and restated management agreement during the year. Under the new agreement

dated 29™ December 2010 the Group agreed thal henceforth it be provided with investment management services
by JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited, in addition to Bear Stearns Asset Management Inc.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

The Managers® key responsibilities include proposing an investment strategy to the Board and. within certain
authority limits, selecting investments for acquisition and disposal and arranging appropriate lending facilities. The
Managers are also responsible for all issues pertaining to asset management.

In light of the performance of the Company since incorporation it is the view of the independent Directors that it is
in the best interests of the Shareholders to continue with the current appointment of the Managers under the terms
agreed.

In conjunction with the Groups® acquisition of Macquarie Private Capital Group ( MPCG’), Macquarie Investment
Management Limited (‘MIML’) was retained as an advisor and sub-administrator by BSPEL Australia Limited.
Pursuant to the management agreement between BSPEL Australia Limited and MIML. BSAM Inc. has assumed
day-to-day control aver the portfolio.

Secretary
HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited held the oftice of Secretary throughout the year.

Dividends
The Directors do not propose the payiment ot a dividend.

[ndependent Auditor
Due to recent regulatory changes, KPMG Channel Istands Limited have notified the Board of their intention to
resign.

Shareholder Relations

Sharcholder communications are a high priority for the Board. The Managers produce a monthly fact sheet which
15 distributed to shareholders and released to the London Stock Exchange. Members of the Managers’ Investment
Commiitee make themselves available at all reasonable times to meet with principal sharcholders and key sector
analysts. Feedback from these sessions is provided by the Managers to quarterly Board meetings.

In addition. the Board is also kept fully appraised of all market commentary on the Company by the Managers and
other professional advisers including the Company’s brokers. Through this process the Board sceks to monitor the
views of shareholders and to ensure that the Group’s communication program is effective.

The Chairman and the Managers will be available at each Annual General Meeting (o answer any questions that
attending shareholders may have.

Substantial Interests

Disclosure and Transparency Rules are comprised in the Financial Services Authority Handbook. Such rules
require substantial shareholders to make relevant holding notifications to the Company and the UK Financial
Services Authority. The Company must then disseminate this information to the wider market.

Resnlts of Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 7 June 2011

The Company convened an AGM on 7 June 2011 to vote on a series of special and ordinary resolutions all of which
were approved by the sharcholders. A full list of these resolutions can be seen on page |1 in the corporate actions
report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Dircctors” Report, Annual Report and Financial Statements in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Guemsey company law requires the Directors to prepare financials statements for each financial vear. Under that
law they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and applicable law.

The consolidated financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing those financial statciments the Directors are required to:

¢ Seleet suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently:

¢ Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e State whether applicible accounting standards have been followed. subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements: and

e Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. They have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them to sateguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect traud and other irregularities.

Disclosure of Information to Auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s Auditor is unaware: and each Director has
taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s Auditor is aware of that information.

We also confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

e the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and
fair view of the assets. liabilities. financial position and profit or loss of the issuer and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole as required by Disclosure and Transparency Rules (*DTR™) 4.1.12R; and

¢ the management report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the issuer and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face as required by DR 4.1.12R.

By br ¢ Board

Trevyr As Chris Spencer
Director Divector

Date: 31 October 2011
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Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Independent auditor’s report to the members of J.P. Morgan Private Equity
Limited

We have audited the consolidated financial statements (the “financial statements™) of J.P. Morgan Private Equity
Limited (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™) for the year ended 30 June 2011 which
comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™),

This report is made salely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 262 of the
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s memnbers as a body, for our audit work. for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities set out on page 31, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. It we become aware of any apparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
e give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 June 2011 and of its results for the
year then ended;

® arein accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 1ASB: and
comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law. 2008.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of J.P. Morgan Private Equity
Limited (continued)

Matters on which we are required fo report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companics (Guernsey) Law, 2008
requires us Lo report to you if. in our opinion:

s the Company has not kept proper accounting records: or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records: or

e we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
are necessary for the purpose ot our audit.

e A’-W.

Dermot A, Dempsey

For and on behalf of KPMG Channel Islands Linited
Chartered Accountants and Recognised Auditors

31 October 2011
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

Investment income

Interest and distribution income
Net gains on investments
Realised foreign currency loss

Expenses

Investment management fee
Administrative fee

Audit fee

Directors' fees

Performance fee

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Net profit before finance costs

Finance eosts

Loan interest payable

ZDP interest pavable

Unrealised foreign currency (loss)/gain
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

l'ax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income
Movement in currency translation reserve

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earuings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share

J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Notes 30 June 30 June
2011 2010

$°000 $°000

3 20,427 7.117
10 43,009 18,396
(10,662) (1o

54,774 25,412

17 (8,069) (8.368)
17 (459) (447)
(241) o

19 (141 (196)
17 (2.732) (2,593)
5 (5.226) (2,864)
(16,868) (14.661)

37.906 10,751

4 (10,904) (11.230)
14 (9.683) (5,232)
6 (5.784) 8.813
11,535 3,102

1 (3) )
11.532 3,100

16,308 3,081

27,840 6.181

7.937 9,729

3,595 (6,629)

11,532 3,100

16,992 11,960

(684) (3,779

27,840 6.181

18 . 2¢ e

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. The notes on pages 39 to 76 form an

integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2011

Non-current assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Current assets

Cash and cash cquivalents
Receivables

Derivative financial assets

Current liabilitics

L.oan balances

Payables and accruals
Derivative financial liabilities
Net current assets
Non-current liabilities

L.oan bhalances
Zero dividend preference shares

Net Assets

Represented by:

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

NAV per Equity share

Notes

— o N

Ko

[0

13
14

21

J.P. Morgan Private Fquity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

30 June 30 June
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
760,823 632,193
38,843 110,341
4,617 14,897

311 16,845
43.771 142,083
(32.166) -
(17.266) (12.665)
(1.939) (1.669)
(7,600) 127.749
(121.571) (160.079)
(130.628) (113.362)
(252,199) (273,44 1)
501.024 486.501
444,335 458,624
36,316 11,387
480,651 470,011
20.373 16,490
501,024 486,501
$1.36 $1.28

The'consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 76 are appe 7thg Board of Directors on 31
Oclobey20 IN and are signed on its behalf by: /d

Trey Chris Spencer
Director Director

The notes on pages 39 1o 76 torm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cashflows

For the year ended 30 June 2011

J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consotidated Financial Statements as at 30 Junc 2011

Operating activities

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Interest

Distributions from investments

Interest expense

Tax rebates

Net derivative losses/(gains)

Net gains on investments

Unrealised foreign currency loss/ (gain)
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in receivables
Increase/(decrease) in payables

Net cash movement in derivative contracts
Cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of investments

Net proceeds from sale of non-current financial assets
Interest received

Other income distributions from investments

Cash flows from investing activitics

Financing activities

Proceeds on issue of equity shares

Equity shares buy back

Issue costs

Loans received

l.oans paid

Interest paid

L.oan arrangement fee paid

Additional capital contribution in subsidiary by minority interests
Drawdown on investors

Proceeds from treasury share sale

Proceeds from issue of Zero Divided Preference shares
Buyback of Zero Dividend Preference share

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at begiuning of year

Effects of exchange difference arising from cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2011 2010
Notes $°000 $7000
11,532 3,100
3 (155) 201)
3 (20,272 (6,916)
4,14 20,587 16.462
: - 8s
10 " 16,804 (9.280)
0 . (61.813) (9.116)
5,784 (8.813)
(27.533) (14.679)
(117) (16,852)
3.725 (1,318)
(2,524) (6,351)
(26,449) (39,200)
(108,993) (87,262)
84.788 73.027
3 155 201
3 20.272 9.763
(3.778) 4271
15 59 73.869
15 (14,348) -
- (1,479)
80.459 4,000
(101,013) (9,049)
(8.,333) (10,377)
(600) -
972 2,072
164
- 19,789
- 48298
(825) -
(43.469) 127,123
(73.696) 83.652
110,341 29.397
2,198 (2,708)
38,843 110,341

The notes on pages 39 to 76 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited (“the Company™) is a closed ended investment fund incorporated as a limited
liability company in Guernsey under the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. As at 30 June 2011. the Company’s
capital structure consisted of three classes ot shares, Equity Shares and two series of Zero Dividend Preference
Shares, all of which are listed on the London Stock Exchange.

The primary objective of the Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) is to achieve capital growth. with
income as secondary objective, from a diversified portfolio consisting predominantly of private equity limited
partnership interests, The Group may also invest directly in private equity investments.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
finuncial statements. and have been applied consistently by ihe Group. Balances within the Statement of Changes in
Equity have been reclassified to improve the presentation surrounding the disclosure of warrants by the Company.
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation..

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") issucd and adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB") and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee. They give a true and fair
view and are in compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements of the Companies (Guernsey) Law.
2008 and the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendinents to standards and interpretations in issue are not yet etfective for the year
ended 30 June 2011, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. The Directors are considering
the potential effect of the implementation of the new standards.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2013).

1FRS 9 deals with classification and measurement of financial assets and its requirements represent a significant
change from the existing requirements in 1AS 39 in respect of financial assets. The standard contains two primary
measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost and fair value. A financial asset would be measured at
amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, and the asset’s contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other financial assets would be measured at fair value.

The standard eliminates the existing 1AS 39 categories of held to maturitv. available for sale and loans and
receivables, For an investment in an equity instrument which is not held for trading. the standard permits an
irrevocable election, on initial recognition, on an individua! share-by-share basis. to present all fair value changes
firom the investment in ather comprehensive inconie, No amount recognised in other comprehensive income would
ever be reclassified to profit or loss. However, dividends on such investments are recognised in profit or loss, rather
than other comprehensive income unless they clearly represent a partial recovery of the cost of the investment.
Investments in cquity instruments in respect of which an entity does not elect to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income would be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The standard requires that derivatives embedded in contracts with a host that is a financial asset within the scope of
the standard are not separated; instead the hybrid financial instrument is assessed in its entirety as to whether it
should be measured at amortised cost or fair value. The Directors of the Group are currently in the process of
evaluating the potential effect of this standard.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financiad Statements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1AS 24: Related Party Disclosures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011)

The accounting standard 1AS 24 ensures that financial statements contain the necessary disclosures to draw attention
to the possibility that a reporting entity's financial position and profit or loss may have been affected by the existence

of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties.

The definition of a related party has been clarified to simplity the identification of related party relationships.
particularly in relation to significant influence and joint control.

The Group have considered the impact of the changes to the definition of a related party, these changes are not
expected to have an impact on the financial statements. The Group does not currently have any related party
relationships that are affected by the change.

IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Stacements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2013)
IFRS 10 establishes a new control model that applies to all entities. It replaces part of IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements dealing with the accounting for consolidated financial statements and SI1C-12
Consolidation- Special Purpose Entities.

This standard is not applicable until January 2013 but is available for early adoption.

The Group has not yet decided when to adopt IFRS 10, the Directors of the Group are currently in the process of
evaluating the potential eftect of this standard.

IFRS 12: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (cftective for annual periods beginning on or after I January
2013)

IFRS 12 includes all disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities. New disclosures have been iniroduced about the judgements made by management to determine
whether control exists. and to require summnarised information about joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities and subsidiaries with non controlling interests.

This standard is not applicable until January 2013 but is available for early adoption.

The Group las not vet decided when to adopt IFRS 12, but does not expect this will have a significant effect on the
Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement (cffective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2013)

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for determining the fair value of assets and liabilities.
IFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value. bui rather, provides guidance on how to
determine fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted by 1FRS. Application of this definition may
result in difterent fair values being determined for the relevant assets. '

IFRS 13 also expands the disclosure requirements for all assets or liabilities carried at fair value. This includes
information about the assumptions made and the qualitative impact of those assumptions on the fair value
determined.

This standard is not applicable until January 2013 but is available for early adoption.

The Group has not yet decided when to adopt IFRS 13, but does not expect this will have a significant effect on the
Group's financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in US Dollars on the historical cost basis except for
investments and derivative financial instruments that are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized

www jpelonline.com
40



J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of Preparation (continued)

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Other financial assets and financial liabilities including
receivables, payables, accruals. loans and zero dividend preference shares are stated at amortised cost.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumpiions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. the results of which form the basis
of making judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may ditfer from these estimates.

In particular, information about signiticant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the consolidated financial
statements are described below in key estimares and assumpiions.

Going concern

The Dircctors have examined significant areas of possible financial risk and have satisfied themselves that no material
exposures exist. The Directors therefore consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foresecable future and after due consideration believe it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies ot an entity 5o as (o obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control. potential
voting rights that currently are exercisable are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group. Intra-group
balances. and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

Associates

Associates are entities in which the entity has significant infhience but no control over the financial and operating
policies. Interests in associates are carried in the statement of tfinancial position at fair value. This treatinent is
permitted by 1AS 28 Investments in Associates, which requires associates interests held by funds to be excluded from
its scope where those investments are designated upon initial recognition. as at fair value through protit or loss and
accounted for in accordance with 1AS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period of the change.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial habilities are
only offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position and statement of
comprehensive income when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and the
Group intends to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and liability simultancously.

i) Financial assets

The classification of tinancial assets at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the financial asset was
acquired and its characteristics. All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus. for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. All purchases of
financial assets are recorded at trade date, being the date on which the Group became party to the contractual
requirement of the financial asset. The Group's financial assets comprise of assets designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. Unless otherwise indicated the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets approximate to their fair values.

www jpelonline.com
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidaled Financial Statemenis as at 30 lune 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group manages its investments with a view to profiting from the receipt ot dividends and changes in fair value
of equity investments. Therefore. all quoted investments and unquoted equity investments are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss and subsequently carried in the consolidated starement of financial position at fair value.
Equity investments at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognised at acquisition cost and related
transaction costs are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within other
expenses.

Investments in funds are recorded ai the fair value of the Group's percentage holding as reported by the general
partners of these funds per the capital statement. The underlying investments held by the funds are measured at fair
value. which is based on the General Partners' estimate, In estimating the fair value of underlying investments the
objective of the General Parters is to replicate the assumptions and estimates that parties in an arm’s length
wransaction would make. In arriving at the estimated value of underlying investments, the General Partners consider
market multiples, net assets. industry benchmarks. prices of recent transactions, negotiated sales prices, projected
operational and financial results of the company and discounted cash flow valuations. The Group believes that this
value. in most cases, represents fair value as of the relevant statement date, although, if other factors lead the Group
to conclude that fair value provided by the general partner does not represent actual fair value, the Directors and
Managers will adjust the value of the investment from the general partner’s estimate.

The valuation policies used by many of the private equity general partners and sponsors in undertaking such
valuations are generally in line with the recommendations of either the International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Valuation Guidelines (IPEVCG) or standard industry practice. Changes in fair value are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income under net gains/losses on investments.

Investments made by the Group are generally considered to be long term investments and are not intended to be
disposed of on a short term basis. Accordingly, while the valuation at the year end represents the Directors™ best
estimate of the realisable amount at the year end they do not necessarily represent the amounts which may eventually
be realised from sales or other disposals of investments. Values of unlisted investments may differ significantly from
the values that would have been used had a ready market Tor these assets existed. The key estimates and assumptions
used 1o arrive at the valuation of unlisted investments are stated on pages 46 to 47,

The disclosure requirements in IFRS 7 establish a hierarchal disclosure framework. which prioritizes and ranks the
level of market price observability used in measuring investments at fair value. Market price observability is
impacted by a number of factors, including the type of investment and characteristics specitic to the investient.
Investments with readily available actively quoted prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively
quoted prices generally will have a higher degree of inarket price observability and lesser degree of judgment used
in measuring fair value.

Investments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:

e Level I — Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.
The types of investments that would generally be included in Level | include listed equities and listed
derivatives. The Group, to the extent it holds such investments, does not adjust the quoted price for these
investiments. even in situations where the Group holds a large position and a sale could reasonably impact
the quoted price.

o Level 1 — Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the reporting date. and fair value is determined through the use of models or other
valuation methodologies. The types of investments that would generally be included in this category
include corporate bonds and loans, less liquid and restricted equity securities and certain over-the-counter
derivatives.

e Level LIl — Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment and include situations where there is little, if
any, market activity for the investment. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant
management judgment or estimation. The types of investments that would generally be included in this
category include equity and/or debt securities issued by private entities.

In certain cases. the inputs used 10 measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In
such cases, 4 Portfolio Fund’s level within the above hicrarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is
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).P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

significant to the fair value measurement. The Group’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair
value measurement in its entirely requires judgment and considers factors specific to the Portfolio Fund.

b) Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They principally comprise trade and other receivables. They are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment.

¢) Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date that a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

The Groups’ derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any of these
derivative instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
‘net gains on investments’.

The Groups' derivative financial instruments comprise of a put option and foreign exchange forward contracts. The
fair value of these instruments is based on their quoted price. If a quoted price is not available, then fair value is
estimated by discounting the difterence between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the
residual maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate.

d) De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset (in whole or in part) is derecognised either:

e When the Group has transferred substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership: or

e  When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards and when it no longer has
control over the asset or a portion of the asset; or

e When the contractual right to receive cash flow has expired.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its consolidated statement of financial
position, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the wansterred assets or a portion of
them. It all or substantially all visks and rewards are retained. then the transterred assets are not derecognised.

ii) Financial liabilities

The classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the financial liability
was issued and its characteristics. All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs
incurred. All purchases of financial liabilities are recorded on trade date, being the date on which the Group becomes
party to the contractual requirements of the financial liability. Unless otherwise indicated the carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial liabilities approximate to their fair values.

a) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

These include trade payables and other short-term monetary liabilities. loans and Zero Dividend Preference shares
which are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method.

b) De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (in whole or in part) is derecognised when the Group has extinguished its contractual obligations.
it expires or is cancelled. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is taken to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investiments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the
purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 lune 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Zero Dividend Preference shares

Zero Dividend Preference shares (“ZDP Shares™) are classified as a liability in the consolidated financial statements
as the ZDPs have a maturity date of either 28 June 2013 or 31 December 2015 and receive a fixed redemption yield
of 7% or 8.25%, respectively. On 12 September 2011 the Group issued a new class of ZDP shares. These ZDP
Shares have a maturity date of 31 December 2017 and receive a fixed redemption yield of 8.25%.

\
Each class of ZDP Shares are initially recognised at their capital entitlement being fair value less issuance costs.
Subsequent to the initial recognition, ZDP shares are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Increases in the carrying value of ZDP shares due to accrued but unpaid interest are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and charged to the capital reserves.

Costs incurred for the issuance of ordinary shares
Incremental external costs directly attributable to the equity transaction and costs associated with the establishiment
of the Company that would otherwise have been avoided are written off against the share capital account.

Earnings Per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted carnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is
calculated by dividing the protit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. adjusted for own shares held. Diluted earnings per
share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss auributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding. adjusted for own shares held, and for the effects of the dilutive potential
ordinary shares of the warrants outstanding.

Treasury Shares

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid. which includes directly
attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction tfrom the share capital account. Repurchased shares are classitied as
treasury shares and are presented in the reserve for own shares. When treasury shares are sold or reissued
subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the
transaction is presented in the share capital account.

Provisions

The Group recognises provisions when a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event exists,
and it is probabie that an outflow of economic benefits is required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
measured at net present value and take into account legal fees. The expected future cash outflows are discounted
at appropriate pre-tax interest rates, reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money and, if
applicable. the risks specific to the liability. The increase of provisions as a result of the passage of time is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income under finance costs.

Net gains on investinents
Net gain on investments at fair value through protit or loss includes all realised and unrealised fair value changes
and foreign exchange differences, but excludes interest and dividend income.

Net realised gains on investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised when the de-recognition
criteria for financial assets are mel. Gain or loss is recognised when persuasive evidence exists. usually in the
torm ot a sale agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, there is no continuing management involvement with the investment.
and the amount of gain or loss can be measured reliably.

Dividend and other distribution incoine

Dividend and other distribution income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Dividends and other distribution income is recognised when persuasive evidence exists. usually in the form of a
dividend or distribution notice that payment will be made, and the amount of the dividend or distribution can be
measured reliably.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidaled Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest

Interest income and expense is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as it accrues using
the original effective interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or origination date.

Expenses
Expenses are recognised on an aceruals basis in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Performance Fees
Performance fees are recognised on an accruals basis in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The
performance period is concurrent with the annual accounting period.

Segmental information

The Board has considered the requirements of 1FRS 8 — “Operating Seginents”™. The Board is of the view that the
Group is engaged in a single segment of business. being Private Equity. The Board, as a whole. has been determined
as constituting the chief operating decision maker of the Group.

The Board is charged with setting the Group’s investment strategy in accordance with the Group’s Prospectus. They
have delegated the day-to-day implementation of this strategy to the Managers but retain responsibility to ensure that
adequate resources of the Group are directed in accordance with their decisions. The Managers have been given full
authority to act on behalf of the Group in the management of the Group’s assets in accordance with the Amended and
Restated Investment Management Agreement on behalf of the Group and to carry out other actions as appropriate to
give effect thereto.

Whilst the Managers may take investment decisions on a day-to-day basis regarding the allocation of funds to
difterent investments, any changes to the investment strategy or major allocation decisions have 1o be approved by
the Board, even though they may be proposed by the Managers. The Board therefore retains full responsibility as to
the major allocation decisions made on an ongoing basis. The Managers will act under the terms of the Amended
and Restated Investment Management Agreement which cannot be changed without the approval of the parties to the
agreement.

The key measure of performance used by the Board to assess the Group's performance and to allocate resources is
the NAV which is prepared on a monthly basis by HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (“the Administrator).
The NAV reported by the Administrator is prepared on a basis consistent with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

The Company’s assets held as of the period end and the geographical area the Company is invested into are presented
in the Portfolio Review on pages 16 to 20. The Company does not hold any non-current assets other than financial
instruments.

Foreign Exchange
Functional and presentation currency

The Board of Directors has resolved that the consolidated financial statements of the Group be presented in the US
Dollar. The Board of Directors considers the US Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic
effects of the underlying transactions. events and conditions. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
the US Dollar, which is also the Company’s tunctional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from wanslation are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Gains and losses arising from the translation of subsidiary balances are treated as other
comprehensive income and are presented in the currency translation reserve in equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement
ot comprehensive income within ‘realised and unrealised foreign currency (loss)/gain’.
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J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or
loss are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “Net gains on investiments’.

All Guernsey based companies fall under the Zero-10 tax regime and have their investment income assessed for tax
at a taxable rate of 0%.

The Australian Subsidiary. MPCT, is not subject to income tax provided the taxable income of MPCT is fully
distributed either by way of cash or reinvestment (i.e. unit holders are presently entitled to the income of MPCT).

BSPEL (Lux) S.a.r.l. is fully taxable and is subject to two different types of taxes in Luxembourg. The first type is
levied on the annual profit of the company (corporate income tax and municipal income tax) and a second is annually
levied on the wealth of the company (net wealth tax).

For the latest tax retumn received on July 29. 2011, the estimated tax burden was €2,180. The estimated tax burden for
2010 is €1,305.

Beur Stearns Global Turnaround Fund, LP, a Delaware partnership, is not subject to income tax. As a partnership. tax
basis income and losses are passed. through to the Company as sole limited partner and accordingly, there is no
provision for income taxes.

Iberian Acquisition Holdings, L1.C is a Delaware Limited Liability Company which is treated as a partnership tor
income tax purposes. All business losses, profits, and expenses are passed through to the Company as its sole
member.

Key estimates and assumptions

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial information are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. The
resulting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The only estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities relate to the valuation of unquoted investments and consolidation of snbsidiaries.

Valuation of investments

The unquoted investments are valued in accordance with IPEVC valuation guidelines as set out in financial assets
policy above. Judgement is required in order to determine the appropriate valuation methodology under these
guidelines, and subsequently in determining the inputs into the valuation models used. These judgements include
making assessments of the future camings potential of portfolio companies. appropriate earnings multiples to apply.
and marketability discounts. Although the judgements are significant, the valuation guidelines are clear, well
established and supported by a large part of the global private equity industry.

Investments in private equity funds do not have a readily available market and are generally valued based on the fair
value of cach private equity fund as reported by the respective general partner as per the capital statement, which
necessarily incorporates estimates made by those general partners. The Group believes that this value. in most cases,
represents fair value as of the relevant statement date, although, if other factors lead the Group to conclude that fair
value provided by the general partner does not represent actual fair value, the Directors and Managers will adjust the
value of the investiment from the general partner's estimate. The Group estimates fair value based on publicly
available information and the most recent financial information provided by the general partners, as adjusted for cash
tflows since the date of the most recent financial information.

Additionally, the value of public equity securities known to be owned by the private equity finds. based on the most
recent information reported to the Group by the general partners, have been marked to market as of the last quoted
price on the reporting date.

www. jpelonline.com
d4h



J.. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Key estiinates and assumptions (continued)

Where applicable, a discount is applied to such securities based on an estimate of the discount applied by the general
partners (to account for restrictions or other constraints) in calculating NAV. The transfer of each of the Groups’
investments in private equity funds generally requires the consent of the corresponding private equity fund manager,
and the transfer of certain fund investments is subject to rights of first refusal or other pre-emptive rights, further
limiting the Company from transterring an investment in a private equity fund.

The weighted average life of the Groups® investments in private equity funds was 4.8 years as at the reporting date
prior to any extensions based upon the funds' stated termination date. 1t is common practice for general partners (o
extend the life of a fund for a period of several vears beyond the original termination date. Thus. it is likely that the
average remaining life for Groups' investments in private equity funds is materially greater than 4.8 years. Historical
J-curves analysis for private equity investments indicates that the average life for a fund is fifteen years.

Direct co-investments and other investments where no fair value is being provided to the Group by the general
partner or sponsor are carried at fair value, as estimated by the Directors and Managers. In estimating fair value, the
Directors and Managers also consider the value assigned to each investment by the fund with which the Group has
co-invested, to the extent known. The Directors and Managers also considers the estimated fair value based on the
projected enterprise value at which the underlying company could be sold in an orderly disposition over a reasonable
period of time and in a transaction between willing parties other than in a forced sale or liquidation. In these
instances, market multiples considering specificd financial measures (such as EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, cash
flow, net income, revenues or NAV) and/or a discounted cash flow or liguidation analysis can be used.

Consideration may also be given to such factors as the company's historical and projected financial data. valuations
given to comparable companies, the size and scope of the company's operations, the company's strengths.
weaknesses. applicable restrictions on transfer, industry information and assumptions, general economic and market
conditions and other factors deemed relevant. The Directors and Managers may also engage the services of a third
party valuation firm to assist with valuing the asset.

Valuations for private equity funds acquired in secondary purchases are determined on a fimd by tund basis taking
into consideration a number of factors including: the purchase price paid for the fund, the valuation applied by the
general partner in the most recently available statements (adjusted for cash flows through the purchase date), the
conditions. under which the assets were purchased. market and economic conditions at the time of purchase and other
factors considered relevant at the time of the transaction. The public equity secarities known to be owned within the
purchased private equity fund, based on the most recent information reported to the Group by the general partners.
have been marked to market and a discount applied to such securities based on an estimate of the discount apphed by
the general partners (1o account for restrictions or other constraints) in calculating NAV in the month in which the
assets are purchased.

Consolidation

The management is also required to assess. for each entity in which it invests, whether it is in a position of control
and should theretore consolidate the assets. liabilities and results of that entity. Control is presumed to exist when
the Company owns, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries. more than half of the voting power of an entity.
However in some exceptional circumstances the management may assess that the Company does not control another
entity even though it holds more than halt the voting rights of the other entity or controls another entity when it
holds less than half of the voting rights.

In making its assessment the management will consider whether the Company or another investor has control of
another entity by virtue of:

e power over more than half of the voting rights by virtue of an agreement with other investors:
power to govern the tinancial and operating policies of the entity under a statute or an agreement;
power to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors or an equivalent
governing body and control of the entity is by that board of directors or body; or

. power (o cast the majority of votes at meetings of the hoard of directors or equivalent governing body and
control of the entity is by that board of directors or body.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
Introduction and overview
The tollowing table details the categories of financial assets and liabilities held by the Group at the reporting date:

Assets 2011 2010
$°000 $°000

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition:

- Ee¢pity investments 760,823 632.193
- Held for trading - derivatives 311 16.845
Loans and receivables 43,460 125.238
Total financial assets 804,594 774,276
Liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading- derivatives (1.939) (1,669)
FFinancial liabilities measured at amortised cost (301.631) (286,106)
Total financial liahilities (303.570) (287,775)

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure (o each significant area of risk. the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. and the Group’s management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Group. the Group's investments and the underlying portfolio companies are materially affected by a variety of
conditions in the global financial markets and economic conditions throughout the world, including, but not limited
to rising interest rates, inflation. business and consumer confidence. availability of credit, currency exchange rates
and controls and changes in laws, These factors are outside the Group’s control and may affect the level and
volatility of sccurities prices, the amount of distributions received from investments in the portfolio and the liguidity
and the value of investments. The Group may be unable to mitigaie its exposure to these conditions as etforts to
manage its exposure may or may not be effective.

The primary investiment objective is (o achicve both short and long-term capital appreciation by investing in a well
diversified portlolio of private equity fund interests purchased in the secondary market and sourced through the
primary market. While the Group intends to make investments that will create long-term value for shareholders. the
investments made may not appreciate in value and. in fact, may decline in value. Moreover, the Group’s historical
financial performance, in particular its Net Asset Value, reflects unrealised gains on investments as of applicable
measurement dates which may never be realised due to many factors, some of which are not in the Group’s control,
which may adversely affect the ultimate value realised from the Group's investments. The success of any of the
investments in the porttolio will depend upon:

e the quality of its management and the management of the portfolio companies in which it invests;

o its ability to select successfully investment opportunities;

e gencral economic conditions; and

o its ability to liquidate its investments.

The Group can offer no assurance that its investiments will generate gains or income or that any gains or incorne that
may be gencrated on particular investments will be sutficient to offset any losses that may be sustained.

The Group anticipates that the scope of risk managemenr activities it undertakes will vary based on the level and
volatility of interest rates and public equity indexes, prevailing foreign currency exchange rates, the type of
investments that are made and other changing market conditions. The use of hedging transactions and other
derivative instruments to reduce the effects of a decline in the value of a position does not eliminate the possibility
of fluctuations in the value of the position or prevent lasses if the value of the position declines.

Please reter to the Group's Prospectus for further risk disclosures.
Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both gains and losses and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (continued)
Market Risk (continued)

The private equity funds and direct private equity investiments in the Groups' portfolio may be materially affected by
conditions in the global financial markets and economic conditions. The capital and credit markets have experienced
unprecedented volatility and disruption over recent periods. Uncertainty created by market and economic conditions
and a tightening of credit could lead to declines in valuations of equity and debt securities without regard to the
underlying financial condition of the issuer in certain cases.

The global financial markets and economic conditions may become dislocated or deteriorate, due to a variety of
factors beyond the control of the Group. The general partners of the funds held by the Group may face reduced
opportunities to sell and realise value from their existing portfolio companies, and portfolio companies may employ
substantial indebtedness that may be difficult to extend or replace and which may magnity the impact of any
valuation changes.

In addition. while difficull market conditions may increase opportunities to make certain distressed asset
investments, such conditions also increase the risk of default with respect 10 portfolio companies with debt
investments. Such defaults would adversely affect the profitability and net asset values of the investment funds in
the Group Portfolio. and consequently, the profitability, Net Asset Value and Share price of the Group.
Furthermore, during periods of adverse economic conditions, the Group may have difficulty accessing financial
markets, which could make it more difficult or impossible for the Group to obtain funding for additional investments
and harm its profitability. Net Asset Value and Share price. Deteriorating conditions in the global financial markets,
and actions by governments to address them, have created a great deal of uncertainty for the asset management
industry, which may adversely affect the Group's investments, access to financing, competitive landscape and
overall performance.

Management of mmarket risks

The Group's strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by its investment objective. The primary
investment objective is to achieve both short and long-term capital appreciation by investing in a well diversified
portfolio of private equity fund interests purchased in the secondary market and sourced through the primary market.
The Group also makes investments in individual companies by co-investing with private equity sponsors. These
investments are generally illiquid and non-public. however the Group may at times invest in public listed securities.
The Group's market risks are managed on an ongoing basis by the Managers and are discussed with the Board of
Directors on a quarterly basis.

The Managers work to mitigate risk by building a diversified portfolio, focusing on achieving a balance across
managers. investment styles. industrial sectors, geographical focus and investment styles. The Managers will also
seek to invest in funds created during different vintage years to dampen systemic economic conditions that may
impact the private equity market in any given year. Details of the nature of the Company’s investment portfolio at
the reporting date are disclosed in the Portfolio Review on pages 16 to 18,

The Managers invest on a highly selective basis and sechs opportunities with high quality private equity investment
firms that have proven track records and capabilities. The Managers will validate a given firm’s underlying
investment thesis and evaluate its ability to successfully invest in private equity prior to proceeding with any
investment.  In addition, the Group's secondary investment strategy enables the Managers to evaluate specific
privaic cquity assets.

This permits the Managers to diversify its portfolio at the Company level as well as the fund manager level and to
determine that assets are purchased at valuations acceptable to the Managers. The Managers actively manage the
investment portfolio by meeting with private equity sponsors (o discuss current and prospective investments. In
addition. each quarter the Managers evaluate private equity sponsor performance reports, valuations, financial health
and current activities, and proactively engage them on any potential issues or underlying industry trends.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Gronp's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to cash and cash equivalents and
tloating rate debt obligations. The Group has incurred. and expects to continue to incur, indebtedness to fund its
liquidity needs and to potentially leverage certain investments. Due to the foregoing, the Company is. and believes
that it will continue to be. exposed to risks associated with movements in prevailing interest rates. An increase in
interest rates could make it more difficult or expensive to obtain debt financing. could negatively impact the values
of fixed income investments, and could decrease the returns that investments generate or cause them to generate
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (continued)
Exposure to interest rate risk (continued)

The Group is, and believes that it will continue to be. subject to additional risks associated with changes in
prevailing interest rates due to the fact that its capital is invested in underlying portfolio companies whose capital
structures may have a significant degree of indebtedness. Investments in leveraged companies are inherently more
sensitive to declines in revenues, increases in expenses and interest rates and adverse economic, market and industry
developments. A leveraged company’s income and net assets also tend to increase or decrease at a greater rate than
would be the case it money had not been borrowed. As a result, the risk of loss associated with an investiment in a
leveraged company is generally greater than for companies with comparably less debt.

As at 30 June 2011, all of the Company’s direct corporate borrowings were trom its US$150 million secured credit
facility. of which US$75 million was drawn as at 30 June 2011. This capital is a floating rate debt with the interest
expenses incuited from this facility based on the US London Interbank Offer Rate (LLIBOR) or Euro Interbank
Offered Rate (FURIBOR) as applicable..

The Group has non-recourse indebtedness of $1,776,114 and € 28,700.000 (2010: $1,776,114 and €24,750.000) and
AUS$ 30,000.000 (2010: AUS 30,000,000) through its BSPEL/MIGDAL Mezzanine Limited and BSPEL Australia
Limited subsidiaries respectively which have been consolidated in these financial statements. Both credit facilities
are available in multiple currencies and therefore borrow funds that are tied o US LIBOR, GBP LIBOR,
EURIBOR. and the Australian Bank Bill Swap Rate.

The Group has issued a $4,000,000 promissory note to Media Champion Investments Limited in exchange for
equity interest in China Media Enterprises Limited. The promissory note bears interest at fixed rate of 6% per
annum.

The majority of the Group’s assets are non interest bearing, however the assets that do have interest rate exposure
are primarily related to investments in mezzanine and special situation private equity funds. In addition. excess cash
held by the Group may be invested in short-term fixed deposit accounts that are rolled over on a weekly basis and
are impacted by interest rate fluctuations as such giving the Group variable loans and cash deposits. 1t is not
significantly exposed to interest rate risk on its assets and liabilities.

The Company also maintains Zero Dividend Preference shares (“ZDP Shares™) at a fixed rate. and is therefore not
impacted by interest rate tfluctuations. The market value of the ZDP Shares from time to time will be affected by
changes in general interest rates, with upward movements in interest rates likely to lead to reductions in the market
value of the ZDP Shares.

Recourse on external borrowings will only be undertaken it the Directors and the Managers consider the prevailing
interest rates favourable and that the terms and conditions attaching to such borrowings are acceptable, having
regard to the investiment objective and policy of the Group.

Such borrowings are also limited in size by the Group’s internal policies. as the Directors have restricted aggregate
borrowings to 20 per cent of the Adjusted Total Capital and Reserves of the Company. As a result, the Managers
may forgo investments that are highly leveraged, thereby presenting additional interest rate risk. The Group’s overall
interest risks and day-to-day decision making are managed on an ongoing basis by the Managers in accordance with
its internal policies. The Board of Directors is consulted on a quarterly basis. or more frequently as the case may be.

In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities. the following table indicates

their eftective interest rates at the reporting date analysed by financial assets and liabilities of fixed and variable rate
instruments.
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2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (continued)
Exposure to interest rate risk (continued)

30 June 2011 30 June 2010
$'000 $'000
Fixed Rate Instruments
Financial Liabilities (130,628) (113,362)
(130.628) (113.362)
Yariable Rate Instruments
Financial Assets 39,154 127,186
Financial Liabilities (155,676) (161,748)
(116,522) (34.562)
Total interest sensitivity gap (247.150) (147.924)

An increase in 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have decreased shareholders equity by
$ 2,472,000 (2010: $1.479,000). A decrease of 100 basis points would have had an equal but opposite effect
Moreover. the average outstanding loan and cash balances for the fiscal year ended 30 June 2011 may difter
materially from the fiscal year ended 30 June 2010, which would impact the results of the sensitivity analysis.

Exposure to currency risk

Currency risk arises from the possibility that fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates will affect the value of
the Group's assets and liabilities, the Net Asset Value and the market price of the Equity Shares. The Company’s
functional currency is the US Dollar. As a result foreign currency assets and liabilities will be translated to US
Dollars. The Group maintains investments in Euros. Sterling, Australian Dollars, and other currencies. and may
invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than US Dollars.

When valuing investments that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the subsidiary
which owns the investment. the Company is required to convert the values of such investments into its functional
currency based on prevailing exchange rates as at the end of the applicable accounting period. Changes in exchange
rates between the functional currency and other currencies could lead to significant changes in the Net Asset Values
that the Group reports from time to time and could subject such Net Asset Values to favourable or unfavourable
fluctuations. Among the factors that may affect currency values are trade balances, levels of short term interest rates,
differences in relative values of similar assets in different currencies, long-term opportunities for investment and
sapital appreciation and political developments.

The Group currently has currency hedges in place to partially mitigate fluctuations in its foreign exchange exposure.
The Managers may engage in currency hedging to limit the Group’s exposure to currency fluctuations, Currency
hedging by the Managers may be by means of spot and forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such
contracts or by using such other derivative instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect. To
date. the Group has employed put options, spot and forward foreign exchange contracts.

During the year the Group realises a foreign currency loss of $10.662,000 this was largely a result of the currency
hedges placed to mitigate the Groups exposure to the Australian Dollar.

The use of forward foreign exchange contracts requires a margin (moneys deposited with the forward foreign
exchange counterparty), which reduces the funds available to increase the Group’s investment base. The success of

any hedging or other derivative transactions that the Group may enter into will generally depend on its ability to
correctly predict market changes. As a result, while the Group may enter into such transactions for a particular class

of shares in order to reduce its exposure to currency tluctuations. unanticipated market changes may negatively

affect the outcome of such transactions. The Group is also subject to the risk that counterparties in any hedging or other
derivative transactions will be unable or unwilling to perform their obligations. The Group’s counterparty risk

www jpelonline.com

31



J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Stalements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (continued)
Exposure to currency risk (continued)

has increased as credit and liquidity have become constrained in the global financial markets. There can be no
assurance that currency hedging will be effective and that the Group’s financial condition will not be adversely
altected by fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Furthermore, it any of the Group’s counterpartics were to
default on their obligations under derivative contracts, it could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
business. financial condition or results of operations.

A substantial portion of the Group’s underlying investments are denominated in the Euro, Australian Dollar, and US
Dollar, Any distributions in respect of the ZDP Shares will be made in Sterling and the market prices and Net Asset
Values of the ZDP Shares are reported in Sterling. Any distributions in respect of the Equity Shares have been made
in US Dollars and the market prices and Net Asset Values of the Equity Shares are reported in US Dollars.

The Managers consider currency risk when making investments into non-US Dollar denominated assets and monitor
currency movements on an ongoing basis, The Managers discuss their policies with the Board of Directors on a
quarterly basis and may choose to alter its asset allocation or currency risk strategies as a result in their absolute
discretion.

At the reporting date the carrying value of the Company, BSPEL/Migdal Mezzanine Limited, and BSPEL Australia
Limited’s. scparately stated, financial assets and financial liabilities held in individual Toreign currencies as a
percentage of its net assets were as follows:

Currency Company

2011 2010
Eura 19% 9%
Sterling -23% 1%
Australian Dollar 12% 9%
% 19%

Currency BSPEL/Migdal Mezzanine Limited
2011 2010
Euro 100% 100
100% 100%

Currency BSPEL Australia Limited
2011 2010
Euro 15% 10%
Sterling 2% 2%
US Dollar 30% 39%
47% 51%

The tollowing table sets out the aforementioned entities total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to
foreign currencies of the monetary assets and liabilities:

2011 Company

Financial Financial Forward FX Net exposure

assets liabilities contracts
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
[Furo 182,795 - (90.271) 92,324
Sterling 18,758 (130.627) - (111,869)
Australian Dollar 96,393 - (37.5322) 58,871
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2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (continued)
Exposure to currency risk (continued)

2011 BSPEL/Migdal Mezzanine Limited

Financial Financial Forward FX Profit or Net
assets liabilities contracts Loss exposure
$'000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000

Euro 123.862 (43,562) - 25.060 105.360
2011 BSPEL Australia Limited
Financial Financial Forward FX Net
assets liabilities contracts exposure
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Furo 14,884 - - 14,884
Sterling 2,226 - - 2,226
US Dollar 28,749 - - 28,749
2010 Company
Financial Financial Forward FX Net
assets liabilities contracts exposure
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Euro 156.202 - (113,761) 40,441
Sterling 19.243 (113,362) 97.201 3.082
Australian Dollar 82.356 - (40,267) 42,089
Yen 172 - - 172

2010 BSPEL/Migdal Mezzanine Limited

Financial Financial Forward FX Profit or Net
assets liabilities contracts Loss exposure
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $000

Euro 93.063 (52.104) - (14.636) 46,323

2010 BSPEL Australia Limited

Financial Financial Forward FX Net
assets liabilities contracts exposure
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000

Eure 8,743 - - 8.743
Sterling 2,057 - - 2.057
US Dollar 32,804 - - 32.804

Amounts on the above table are based on the carrying value of monetary assets and liabilities and the underlying
principal amount of forward currency contracts. Based on the standard deviation of currency fluctuations. the
volatility of cach currency has been assessed at the year end; had the reporting currency of each subsidiary entity
(where the functional currency is not USD) strengthened by the following amounts in relation to the other currencies,
shown in the table below with all other variables held constant, shareholders’ equity and profit and loss would have
decreased/(increased) by the amounts shown below:

usD
Percentage Standard Deviation

2011 2010
Lauro 4% 6%
Sterling 2% 4%
Australian Dollar 6% 3%
Yen - 2%
UAE Dinar 5% -
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2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (continued)
Exposure to currency risk (continued)
AUD
Percentage Standard Deviation
2011 2010
Euro 3% 7%
Sterling 4% 6%
US Dollar 6% 5%
Company
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Euro 3,701 2,426
Sterling (2,237) 123
Australian Dollar 3,532 2,104
Yen - 3
UAE Dinar - -
Total 4.996 4.656
BSPEL/Migdal Mezzanine Limited
2011 2010
$000 $°000
Furo 4214 2,780
Total 4.214 2.780
BSPEL Australia Limited
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
[Zuro 447 612
Sterling 89 122
US Dollar 1,725 1,640
Total 2.261 2375

The relevant weakening of the reporting currency against the above currencies would have resulted in an equal but
opposite elfect on shareholders™ equity and profit and loss by amounts shown above, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

Exposure to other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that value of the instrument will fluc(uate as a result of changes in market prices (other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual
investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in that market. As the Group’s financial
instruments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, all changes in market condition will directly affect Net gains on investments and Net Asset
Value.

The valuation ot unquoted investments depends upon-a combination of imarket factors and the performance of the
underlying asset. The Group does not currently hedge the price risk inherent in the portfolio, but actively pursues
investment opportunities that are acquired at what the Managers believe to be relatively attractive purchase multiples
and may therefore be less susceptible to negative fluctuations in fair value calculations. In addition. the Managers
consult with a variety of other private equity investors and industry experts to better ascertain fair value pricing
before proceeding with an investment, and may also refrain from making commitments to funds that are acquiring
assets at relatively expensive valuations. Moreover, the Managers seek (o maximise the diversification of its
portfolio by investment type, investment strategy, vintage vear, geography, and industry in an effort to minimise the
impact of fluctuations in value of any single investment. The Managers monitor price risk and consults with the
Board of Directors on a quarterly basis, or more frequently as the case may be.

The Group also has exposure to assets that are publicly traded on various cquity markets. These represent 1.84 %
(2010: 2.32%) of the Group’s porttolio value as at 30 June 2011. Under IFRS. the Company is required to value
investments in traded securities ut their fair value at the end of each accounting period. which could lead to
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2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (continued)
Exposure to other price risk (continued)

significant changes in the Net Asset Values and results of operations that the Company reports from quarter to
quarter. The Managers believe these assets will continue to make up a minority position in the portfolio.

A 5% increase in the value of the Group's investments portfolio as at 30 June 2011 would have increased the
Group's equity by $38,041.150. An equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased equity by an equal
but opposite amount.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment that it has
entered into with the Group. The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk
exposure at the reporting date. This relates also to financial assets carried at amortised cost. as they have a short term
10 maturity.

At the reporting date. the Group's financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted to the following:

Group
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Investments in debt 24,942 6,503
Derivative financial instruments 311 16,845
Cash and cash equivalents 38.845 110,341
Receivables 4,617 14,897
Total 68,713 148,586

In respect of credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents. the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty with a maximuin exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.  In order
to mitigate such risks substantially all of the Group's cash is maintained with HSBC Private Bank (CI) Ltd and ING
Luxembourg SA. In addition, the Managers monitor the financial position of both banks on an ongoing basis by
reviewing carnings releases. In the event that that the credit quality of either bank deteriorates signiticantly, the
Managers will move the cash holdings to another bank. Substantially all of the cash assets of the Group are held by
HSBC Private Bank (CD Ltd. Bankruptey or insolvency of the custodian may cause the Group’s rights with respect
to securities held by the custodian to be delayed or limited. The Group monitors its risk by monitoring the credit
quality and financial position of the custodian the Group uses. No financial assets were part due or impaired at 30
June 2011 or 30 June 2010.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Managers. The Group’s overall credit
risk is managed on a quarterly basis by the Board ot Directors.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s financial instruments primarily include investments in unlisted equity investiments that are not publicly
traded and therefore may be illiquid. As a result the Group may not be able to liquidate some of its investinents in
these instruments at an amount close to their fair value should such liquidation be necessary to meet liquidity
requirements, including the need to meet outstanding undrawn commitments,

The Group's exposure to liquidity risk is actively managed and imonitored on an ongoing basis by the Managers, and
by the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The Managers frequently consult with their underlying fund
managers about upcoming capital requirements as well as potential exit and other monetisation events. Allocations
{0 new investments take into consideration the near-term capital needs within the Group’s broader private cquity
porttolio. Where the Managers believe there may be upcoming liquidity requirements, they will take necessary
action to ensure that adequate funds are available.

The Group’s liquidity may also be impacted by its existing tender offer facility. While any tender of shares is
offered at the Board's sole discretion, in the event that the facility is utilised. it may require the use ot a material
amount of excess cash that the Group may otherwise be able (o invest in private equity or reduce outstanding
indebtedness.

The Group has entered into a US$ 150,000,000 revolving loan facility agreement with Lloyds TSB Bank ple which
will provide the Group with both short-term and long-term liquidity. Per the credit agreement, the Group and the
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2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) '

lender monitors the loan covenants on a quarterly basis. As at 30 June 2071 1. the Group was in compliance with all
such covenants. The loan will mature in May 2013, The Group has entered into a Revolving Loan Facility with the
Bank of Scotland. Per the credit agreement. the Group and the lender monitor the loan covenants on a quarterly
basis. Asat 30 June 2011, the Group was in compliance with all covenants.

The Group also maintains cash and cash equivalents in excess of what the Managers believe will be required in the
coming quarters. The Group currently holds cash and cash equivalents of US$38.8 million. The Managers pursue
an investment strategy with respect to all un-invested cash in the Company Portfolio that is designed to balance ihe
need for appropriate liquidity to meet its present and future private equity commitment obligations with the desire to
increase the retuins of the Group Portfolio. The majority of available cash is invested in fixed deposits with rolling
seven-day contracts.

The invesument commitiments presented in note 11 represent commitments to commit capital to underlying
investments as such time as the managers of those assets request.  The precise timing of future calls. and whether
such calls will be made at all. is at the discretion of the investinent managers of each individual asset within the
investment portfolio.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilitics into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances. as the impact of discounting
is not significant.

2011
Carrying Contracted Less than 1-3 3 months  More than |
Financial liabilities ameounts cash flows 1 month Months to | year year
$000 $'000 $’000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Net unfunded commitments - 113.946 113.946 - - -
Other payables 17.266 17.266 17.266 - - -
Derivatives 1,939 1,939 1.939 - - -
t.oans 153,737 161.905 25444 - 10,722 125,739
ZDP shares 130.628 170.321 - - - 170.321
303,570 465.377 158.593 - 10,722 296.060
2010
Carrying Contracted Less than 1-3 3 months  More than |
Financial liabilities amounts cash flows | month Months to 1 year year
$°000 3000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Net anfunded commiutments - 128,020 128,020 - - -
Other payables 12,663 12,665 12,665 - - -
Net scitled derivatives 1,669 1.669 1.011 430 - 228
L.oans 160.079 177.719 4.627 1.904 5,256 165.932
2P shares 113,362 159,707 - - - 159.707
287.775 479,780 146,323 2,334 3.256 325.867

Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the
processes, technology and infrastructure supporting the Group’s operations either internally within the Group or
externally at the Group’s service providers, and from external factors other than credit. market and liquidity risks
such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investiment
management behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Group’s activities,

‘The Group’s objective is 10 manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage 1o its
reputation with achieving its investment objective of generating returns to investors
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2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (continued)
Operational Risks (continued)
I'he primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the
Board of Dircctors. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall standards for the management of
operational risk. which encompasses the controls and processes at the service providers and the establishment of
service levels with the service providers, in the following areas:
e requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities
e requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions
e compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements
documentation of controls and procedures
requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced. and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified
= contingency plans
cthical and business standards
e risk mitigation. including insurance where this is effective.

The directors’ assessment over the adequacy of the controls and processes in place at the service providers with
respect to operational risks is carried out via regular discussions with the service providers and a review of the
service providers’ SAS 70 reports on internal controls. where available.

Other risks
The Company is exposed to various other risks with respect to its investments. A summary of these risks is as
follows:

(a) Valuation risk

All valuations of the private equity funds and similar investments incorporated in the Group's reported net asset
value are made. in part, on valuation information provided by the managers of investments in the Company’s
portfolio. The Managers are reliant on pricing provided by the underlying manager or general partners and have
procedures in place to monitor and ensure that this pricing. in most cases represents fair value. If other factors lead
the Managers to conclude that fair value provided by the underlying managers or general partners does not represent
actual fair value, the Managers will adjust the value of the investment from the underlying managers and general
partner’s estimate.

(b) Reliance on Managers

Quality and execution of management is key to a successful business development. The Group will be relying on the
Managers and their ability 10 evaluate investment opportunities and to further develop the Company’s investments.
The Managers exercise a central role in the investment decision process. Accordingly the returns of the Group will
primarily depend on the performance and abilities of the Managers.

(¢) Political and ‘or regulatory risk

The net asset value of the Group’s assets may be affected by uncertainties such as international political
developments, changes in governmental policies, taxation, restrictions on foreign investment and currency
repatriation. currency fluctuations and other developments in the laws and regulations of the countries in which the
Company’s asscts are invested.

The Managers believe there is no concentration of risk.

3. INTEREST AND DISTRIBUTION INCOME
The tollowing table details the interest and other distribution income earned by the Group during the year:
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Interest income from tinancial assets that are not at fair value through profit
or loss:
Cash and cash equivalents 138 201
Distributions from financial assets at fair value through protit or loss:
Private equity investments ' 20,272 6,916
20.427 7017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. INTEREST EXPENSE

The following table details the interest expense incurred by the Group during the year:

Interest eapense from financial instruments that are not at fair value
through profit or loss:
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost

2011 2010
$°000 $°000
10.904 11.230

L.oss on settlement of the Fortress Credit Corp loan facility included within interest expense was $410,344.

s. OTHER EXPENSES

The following table details the other expenses incurred by the Group during the year:

Legal and professional fees
Travel expenses

Bank charges

Sundry expenses

6. UNREALISED FOREIGN CURRENCY (LOSS) GAIN

The following table details the unrealised foreign currency losses during the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

ZDP loan

BSPEL./Migdal Mezzanine Limited leverage
BSPEL Australia Limited

Hunter Acquisition Limited

7. REALISED FOREIGN CURRENCY (LOSSY GAIN

The following table details the realised foreign currency losses during the year.

FX torward contracts

8. RECEIVABLES
The following table details the receivables at the reporting date.

GBP forward contract settlement in transit
Accrued distributions
Other receivables

2011 2010
$°000 $000
3421 1459
108 447
1,226 299
471 659
5.226 2 864
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
2.198 (2,708)
(8,408) 11,079
429 @57
206 284
(209) 415
(5780 8.813
2011 2010
$°000 $'000
110,662) (101)
(10.662) oD
2011 2010
$°000 $000
2,524 -
2,048 14,843
45 54
4617 14.897

S8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

9. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

The tollowing rable details the payables and accruals during the year.
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Administration fee (note 17) 152 191
Audit fee 20 115
Management fee (note 17) 2,011 2,001
Directors fees 29 -
Accrued calls 7,921 7.202
Interest Expense 1,100 231
Performance fees (note 17) 5,327 2.595
Lloyds Arrangement fee 600 -
Other fees [\ 330
17.266 12,665

10. NET GAINS FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

The following table details the gains from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the
year:

201 2010
$°000 $°000
Designated at fair value through profit or loss
Investment porttolio 61.813 9.116
Held for trading
Derivative financial instruments (16.804) 9,280
Net gains from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. 43,009 18.396

11. INVESTMENTS

All investments are designated at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition, therefore all gains and
losses arise on investments designated at fair value through profit or loss. Given the nature of the Group's
mvestments the fair value guins recognised in these consolidated financial statements are not considered to be
readily convertible to cash in full at the reporting date and therefore the movement in these fair values are treated
as unrealised.

Commitments

The Group has committed to invest in certain private equity funds and investments. Such commitments are payable
upon demand at the request of the Fund’s administrator or General Partner. As of 30 June 2011, the Group held
interests in 108 fund interests, 12 co-investments, and 6 fund-of-funds including private equity funds. direct co-
investments and publicly traded equity securitics and had unfunded commitments to private equity funds of
$113,945,898 (2010: $128,019,595) that may be called by the underlying limited partnerships. In addition. the
Group may make capital commitments to private equity funds in the future and may make purchases of existing
private equity funds in the secondary market, many of which will be subject to additional funding requirements.

The Group may employ an over-commitment strategy when making investments in private equity funds in order to
maximize the amount of its capital that is invested at any given time. When an over-commitinent strategy is
employed, the aggregate amount of capital committed by the Group to private equity funds at a given time may
exceed the aggregate amount of cash that the Group has available for immediate investment.

Because the managers of private equity funds will typically be permitted to make calls for capital contributions
following the expiration of a relatively short notice period. employing an over-commitment approach reqguires the
Group to time investments and manage available cash in a manner that allows the funding of its capital
commitments when capital calls are inade. The Managers are primarily responsible for managing the Groups' cash
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1. INVESTMENTS (continued)
Commitments (continued)

J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited

Consolidaled Financial Stalemenis as at 30 June 2011

and the timing of its investments. The Managers take into account expected cash flows to and from its investments
and amounts available from the issuance of notes under the Program when planning investment and cash
management activities with the objective of secking to ensure that the Group is able to honour its commitments to

funds when they become due.

The Group believes it currently has sufficient liquidity to meet an over-commitinent strategy.

The Group has established a number of investment holding vehicles that are held purely for the purposes of
holding the underlying investment in private equity funds. These special purpose entities are presented in detail

below:
Country of
Name Incorporation % Holding Principal activity
BSPEL Mezzanine Funding Limited Guemsey 100% Holding company
BSPEL/Migdal Mezzanine Limited Guernsey 80% Holding company
BSPEL Australia Limited Guernsey 100%% Holding company
Hunter Acquisition Limited Guernsey 68% Holding company
Bear Stearns Global Turnaround Fund L.P. Delaware 100% Limited partnership
BSPEL (Lux) S.a.r.l. ' Luxembourg 100% Holding company
JPEL TF Limited Guernsey 100% IHolding company
Iberian Acquisition Holdings LLC Delaware 100% Holding company
IPEL Convey Limited Guernsey 100% Holding company
Back Bay (Guernsey) Limited Guernsey 78.8% Holding company
IPEL Holdings Limited Guernsey 100% Holding company

BSPEL Mezzanine Funding Limited owns 80% of the issued capital of BSPEL‘Migdal Mezzanine Limited; a

Guernsey registered company which invests in eight funds through a limited partnership.

BSPEL Australia Limited owns [00% of the issued trust units in Macquarie Private Capital Trust (“MPCT™), an
Australia registered trust which invests in 26 private equity partnerships and investment funds.

IPEL TF Limited is a limited partner in Terra Firma Deutsche Annington, L.P., a Guernsey limited partnership.
Iberian Acquisition Holdings LLC is a limited partner in Alia Capital Fund ICV. a Dutch limited partnership.

IPEL Convey Limited owns 35% of China Media Enterprises Limited, a limited liability BVI company that
wholly owns tour subsidiaries in Hong Kong and China.

i
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1. INVESTMENTS (continued)
The following table is an analysis of the investment portfolio disclosing fair value balances at fair value movements
of the investments

2011 2010
$°000 $°000

Fair value at beginning ol the year 632,193 608.676
Purchase of investments and funding of capital calls 109,825 91.612
Distributions from limited partnership interests and proceeds from disposal
of investments (65,114 (84,099)
Realised gains on distributions from limited partnership interests and
disposal of listed equity investiments

9.869 4,512
Net tair value moveinent in the year (including foreign exchange
gains/losses) 74.050 11,491
Fair value at the end of the year 760.823 632,193

Reconciliation of accumulated unrealised (losses) /

gains movements

Accumulated unrealised losses at beginning of the year (39.180) (50,671
Net unrealised gains in the vear (including foreign exchange gains/losses)

335 11,491

3
Accuntulated unrcalised gains/(losses) at the end of the year 34.155 (39,180)

Details of underlying portfolio funds are presented in the supplementary schedule of investments at the end of these
consolidated financial statements.

The following table summarizes the valuation of the Group’s investments by the 3 level hierarchics as of 30 June
2017:

Total Level | Level 11 Level II
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Investments at fair value through
profit or loss:
Portfolio funds 760.823 13,948 - 746,878
Derivative instruments 311 - 311 -
Total financial assets at fair value 761,134 13,945 311 746.878
Financial liabilities at tair value
through profit or loss:
. Derivative instuments (1,939) - (1,939 -
759,193 13.945 (1.628) 746.878

The Porttolio Funds represent interest in:

- acompany that is listed and traded in an active market: and

- private equity funds that do not trade in an active market and represent illiquid long-term investments that
generally require future capital contributions.

Generally redemptions from the Portfolio Funds are not permitted unless agreed by the general partner of the
Parttolio Funds and liquidity is available to the extent of distributable realized events.

Although such investments may be sold in a secondary market iransaction, subject to meeting certain requirements
of the governing documents of each Portfolio Fund. the secondary market is not active and individual transactions
are not necessarily observable. 1t is therefore reasonably possible that if the Group were to sell a Portfolio Fund in
the secondary market, the sale could occur ar an amount different than the reported tair value. and the difference
could be material. The Group does not have any intention to sell the Portfolio Funds as at 30 June 201 1. The Group
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
11, INVESTMENTS (continued)

expects to receive distributions from the Porttolio Funds as the underlying investments of the Portfolio Fund are
sold. The timing of such liquidations is uncertain.
Options and open forward exchange contracts are included within Level I1 as their prices are not publicly available
but are derived from underlying assets or elements that are publicly available. There have been no significant
transters between Levels Fand 1 during the year.

The changes in the fair value of Portfolio Funds which the Group has classified as Level [11 are as follows:

2011 2010

$°000 $°000
Fair value at beginning of the year 624,760 586,045
Purchase of limited partnership interests and funding of capital calls 109.825 84,677
Distributions from limited partnership interests (65,114 (30.738)
Realised gains/(losses) on distributions from limited partnership interests 9.869 7.332
Net fair value movement in the year (including foreign exchange 67.538 27,444
gains/losses)
Fair value at the end of the year 746,878 624,760

A reconciliation of the Level Il portfolio gains or losses ineluded in profit or losses for the year ended 30 June
2011 are as follows:

2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Reconciliation of accumulated unrealised gains/(losses) movenients
Accumulated vnrealised losses at beginning of the year (33,358) (60.802)
Net unrealised gains in the year (including toreign exchange gains1osses)
67.538 27,444
Accumnulated unrealised gains/(losses) at the end of the vear 34,180 (33.358)

Total realised and unrealised gains and losses recorded for Level 111 Portfolio Funds, it any. are reported in “Net
gains on investinents™ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When valuing the Portfolio Funds, the Managers of the Funds apply widely recognised valuation methods such as
time of last financing, multiple analysis. discounted cash flow method and third party valuation to estimate a fair
value as at the balance sheet date. As the investments, including the valuation of such investments, are under the
control of the managers of these Funds. it is not practical to provide sensitivity analysis around the main inputs used
within the various valuation models.

12. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the normal course of business. the Group enters into transactions in various derivative financial instruments with
certain risks. A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract which is settled at a future date and whose value
changes in response 1o the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price. foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates. credit rating or credit index or other variable.

www jpelonline.com
62



J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

12. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Derivative financial instruments require no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than
would be required for other types of contracts that would be expected to have similar response to changes in market
tactors.

Derivative transactions include a wide assortment of instruments such as forwards. Derivatives are considered to be
part of the advanced cash management process. The use of derivatives is an essential part of the Group’s portfolio
management. Derivatives are not managed in isolation. Consequently the use of derivatives is multifaceted and
includes:
o primarily hedging to protect an asset or liability of the Group against a fluctuation in market values or to
reduce volatility:
a substitution for trading of physical securities:
e adjusting asset exposures within the parameters sct in the investment strategy: and
adjusting the duration of fixed interest portfolios or the weighted average maturity of cash portfolios.

While derivatives are used for trading purposes. they are not used to gear (leverage) a portfolio. Gearing a portfolio
would occur if the level of exposure to the market exceeds the underlying value of the Group. The Group holds the
following derivalive instruments:

Forward currency contracts

Forward currency contracts are primarily used by the Group to hedge against foreign exchange rate risks on its non
US dollar dominated trading sccuritics. The Group agrees to deliver a fixed quantity of foreign currency for an
agreed upon price on an agreed future date. Forward currency contracts are valued at the prevailing bid price at the
reporting date. The Group recognises a gain or loss equal to the change in fair value at the reporting date.

The following forward forcign exchange contracts were unsettled at the reporting date:

2011
Currency Fair
Currency Currency amount Settlement value
Currency sold amount sold bought bought date $,000
UsD 36.750,000 AUD 35,000.000 13 July 2011 (772)
USD 42.367.300 EUR 30,000.000 26 July 2011 (1.167)
(1.939)

2010
Currency Currency Currency Settlement Fair value
Currency sold amount sold bought amount bought date $,000
ush $8,032.000 GBp 40,000,000 18 May 2011 1,780
AUD 24.000,000 USD 20.107,200 30 August 2010 (24)
LEUR 30.000.000 Usn 35.721.000 9 July 2010 (1,011)
ALD 24,000.000 LISh 19,730.400 26 August 2010 (406)
ush 27,612.500 GBP 25.000.000 30 June 201t (228)

111
Options
Options are derivative financial instruments that give the buyer, in exchange for a premium payment. the right, but
not the obligation. 10 cither purchase from (call option) or sell to (put option) the writer on specified underlying
instrument at a specified price on or before a specitied date. The Group has entered into an over-the-counter put
option contract to hedge the Group's currency exchange exposure.

Over the counter option contracts are not guaranteed by any regulated stock exchange. The Group. as a buyer of
over-the-counter options, is subject to credit risk since the counterparty is obliged to make payments under the terms
of the contract if the Group exercises the option. The risk in buying an option is that the Group pays a premium
whether or not the option is exercised. The Group also has the additional risk of not being able to enter into a closing
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12. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Options (continued)

transaction it a liquid secondary market does not exist. The Group's risk of loss is not represented by the notional
contract amounts as the contracts are net settled. Contract or notional amount reflect the involvement of the Group in

the financial instrument, risks arise from possible adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates,

The Group has the following purchased option at the reporting date:

2011

Contract Strike Expiration Fair value
Description Amount Price date $°000
European Euro €32,500,000 1.4476 11 July 2011 $311
Put Option
2010

Contract Strike Expiration Fair value
Description Amount Price date $'000
European Euro €63,000.000 1.4596 11 July 2011 515,065
Put Option

Included in the cash and cash equivalent balance is an amount of $2,410.000 provided as cash collateral to Goldman
Sachs International as a security margin in respect of the forward currency contracts.

13. BORROWING FACILITIES

201 2010
$'000 3000
Bank of Scotland 43,397 32,004
Fortress Credit Corp - 98,852
Lloyds TSB Bank plc 74,174 -
National Australia Bank 32,166 25,223
Media Champion Investments Limited 4,000 4,000
133.737 160.079

Maturity profile
Due within one year 32.166 -
Due after more than | year 121,571 160.079

The Group has entered into a Revolving Loan Facility with the Bank of Scotland. The facility is for €35,000,000 and
may be drawn down in Euros. Sterling or US Dollars bearing interest at a rate of LIBOR, or if the loan is in Euro
EURIBOR. plus 1.75%. The maturity date of the facility is 2 May 2014, The loan is secured over the Group’s
interest in the BoS Mezzanine Partners Fund. LP and its rights under the related limited partnership agreement. The
tair value of the Group’s share of net asset values in BoS Mezzanine Partners Fund. LP at the year end was ELJR
85,099,319 (2010: EUR 75.888.335).

The loan facility with Fortress Credit Corp was fully repaid during the year.

The Group has entered into a multi-currency loan facility agreement with Lloyds TSB Bank plc. The facility is for
USS$150.000,000 and bears interest of US$ LIBOR/EURIBOR + 325 bps on drawn amounts with a leverage of
greater that 10% loan to value. At leverage rates of below 10% the loan bears interest of UUS$ LIBOR/EURIBOR
+275. A flat 1% rate is paid on undrawn amounts.
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13. BORROWING FACILITIES (continued)

The racility had an original term of approximately two vears and expires on 31 May 2013, The facility is drawn
down 1o $75.000.000 at 30 June 2011.

I'he loan with Lloyds TSB Bank ple is secured over the entire JPLL held share capital of the following subsidiaries:

Net asset of

subsidiary

$°000

JPEL Convey Limited 44,976
BSPEL Australia Limited 96,923
BSPEL Mezzanine Funding Limited 70.610
Bear Sicarns Global Turnaround Fund, 1P 36.968
JPEL TF Limited 47.200
JPEL Holdings Limited 6.042
Stoneleigh Back Bay Associates 1.1.C 7.457

The Group’s subsidiary, MPCT (“the Trust™), has entered into a cash advance facility with National Australia Bank,
with a limit of AU$35,000.000 (2010: AU$35,000,000) 1o provide tunding for the Trust’s over commitment
strategy. Interest is payable using the Bank Bill Swap Bid Rate (“BBSY”) plus a margin on the day of draw down.
At the year end the facility was drawn to AU$30,000.000 — AU$10,000.000 due 30 April 2012 and the balance of
AU$20.000,000 due on 31 July 2012.

The Groups subsidiary. JPEL Convey Limited, has written a promissory note to Media Champion Investments
Limited in the amount of $4,000.000 in lieu of the acquisition of an interest in China Media Enterprises Limited.
The promissory note bears an interest of 6% p.a. on principal outstanding and the interest is repayable on a semi-
annual basis. Under the terms of the agreement. the promissory note is unsecured and has no fixed repayment
period; however the Group does not expect Lo repay the facility within the next twelve months.

14, ZERO DIVIDEND PREFERENCE SHARES

The Company has issued two classes of Zero Dividend Preference Shares (*ZDP Shares™) as at the vear end: 2013
ZDP Shares and 2015 ZDP Shares. The holders of the 2013 ZDP shares are entitled to a redemption amount of 41.5
pence per ZDP share as increased daily at such a daily compound rate as would give a final entitlement of 73.0
pence on 28 June 2013, the effective interest rate is 7% pa based on the placing price of 42.5 pence per ZDP share.
Z1DP Shares rank prior to the Equity Shares in respect of the repayment of their entitlement of up to 73 pence per
Z1DP Share. However, they rank behind any borrowings made by the Company that remain outstanding. They cairy
no entitlement to income and the whole of their return takes the form of capital.

The holders of the 2015 ZDP shares are entitled to a redemption amount of 48.75 pence per ZDP share as increased
daily at such a daily compound rate as would give a final entitlement of 87.30 pence on 31 December 2015, the
effective interest rate is 8.25% pa based on the placing price of 50 pence per ZDP share. ZDP Shares rank prior to
the Equity Shares in respect of the repayment of their entitlement of up to 87.3 pence per ZDP Share and pari passu
to the 2013 ZDP Shares. However, they rank behind any borrowings made by the Company that remain
outstanding. They carry no entitlement to income and the whole of their return takes the form of capital.

ZDP shareholders will not be entitled to reccive any part of the revenue profits, including any accumulated revenue
reserves of the Compuny on a winding-up.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. ZERO DIVIDEND PREFERENCE SHARES (continued)
The movement of ZDP shares in the year was as follows;

2013 ZDP Shares
Number of

Date shares
Balance as at 30 June 2010 63,367,316
Tender Offer 22 February 2011 (55.011)
Balance as at 30 June 2011 63.312,305
Issue date 28 June 2008
Valuation date 30 June 2011
Days from issue
Daily compound rate 0.0193299%
Initial price 41.50 pence
Price at valuation 63.41 pence

2015 ZDP Shares
Number

Date of shares
Balance as at 30 June 2010 69,421.547
Tender Offer 22 February 2011 (829.241)
Balance as at 30 June 201} 68,592,306
Issue date 19 December 2008
Valuation date 30 June 2011
Days from issue
Daily compound rate 0.0226913%
Initial price 48.75 pence
Price at valuation 60.11 pence

The interest charge accrued for the year on the ZDP shares was $9,683.000 (2010: $5.232.000).

At 30 June 2011 the fair value of the 2013 ZDP shares was $68,227.739 and the fair value of the 2015 ZDP Shares
was $75,569,336.

18, ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the Company. The Company’s capital is represented by the Share Capital. Zero
Dividend Preference Shares, Capital Reserve and Accumulated Loss Reserve. The capital of the Company is
managed in accordance with its investment policy, in pursuit of its investment objectives, both of which are detailed
in the Overview & Strategy section on page 5 and Investment Policy on page 26. The Company also makes
investinents in individual companies by co-investing with private equity sponsors. These investiments are generally
illiquid and non-public. The Group does not have any externally imposed capital requirements. The Board of
Directors also monitors the level of discount between the market price of its Equity Shares and the Company’s net
asset value per share through open market purchases of shares held as discussed in more details below.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital inanagement during the year.

Authorised share capital

The authorised share capital of the company is £100 divided into 100 founder shares of £1 each, and an unlimited
number of redeemable participating preference shares of no par value cach, which may be issued and designated as
USS Equity Shares. Sterling Equity Shares. Euro Equity Shares, ZDP shares or any other shares (denominated in
any currency) as may be determined by the Board from time to time in accordance with Article 3(4)(d) of the
Company’s Articles of Association.
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1S. ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

Issued share capital

I'he movement of the USS Equity Shares in the period was as follows;

Date Number of shares Price
Balance as at 30 June 2010 367.871.129
$1.00
Warrant conversion 6 July 2010 12.224 $1.35
Warrant conversion 6 October 2010 14.744 $1.37
Tender ofter 22 February 2011 (11,036,914) $1.30
Warrant conversian 21 April 2011 16.667 $1.37
Balauce as at 30 June 2011 356,877,850

The Equity sharcs carry the right o receive all revenue profits of the Company (including accumulated revenue
reserves) which are available for distribution and from time to time determined to be distributed by way of interim
and/or final dividends and at such times as the directors may determine. On winding-up, Equity sharcholders will be
entitled to the net assets of the Company afier any creditors have been paid and the accrued entitlement of the ZDP
Shares has been met.

Buy Back of Ordinary Shares and Authority to Buy Back Shares

The Company attempts to minimise any discount between the market price of its Equity Shares and the Company’s
net asset value per share through open market purchases of shares held at the discretion of the Directors. In either
case, the Company may hold the acquired shares in its treasury and may re-issue such shares to the market at the
current prevailing net asset value per share to avoid dilution of existing shareholders. At the Annual General
Meeting of 20 December 2007, the sharcholders entitled the Board of Directors in accordance with the Companies
(Purchase of Own shares) Ordinance, 1998, to make market purchases (within the meuaning of section 5 of the said
ordinance) of equity shares and zere dividend preference shares of up to 14.99% per cent of the issued shares. At the
Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 16 July 2009. the Directors authority to market such market
purchases has been renewed for an additional § vears. The Directors at their sole discretion may accept redemption
requests for up to 14.99% of zquity shares during each financial year.

The balance of shares held in treasury at the year end was 11.036.914 (2010: Nil) US$ Equity Shares 2,106,519
(2010: 2,051.508) 2013 ZDP Shares and 829,241 (2010: Nil) 2015 ZDP Shares.

Reserve Accounts
The capital reserve arises from the net gains from the revaluation of investments and interest from the Zero
Dividend Preference shares.

The accumulated losses arise from the operations of the Group.

The currency translation reserve arises from the translation of subsidiaries from their functional currency to the
presentation currency (US Dollar).

The $16,992,000 gain in the cmrency translation reserve during the year was primarily due to the foreign exchange
gain on the Australian Dollar which strengthened considerably during this time.

Non-controlling interest is the portion of net assets of BSPEL/Migdal Mezzanine Limited and Hunter Acquisitions
Limited not owned by the Company or BSPEL Mezzanine Funding Limited.

The warrant reserve reflects the fair value on issuance of bonus warrants as a component of reserves.
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I5. ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
Reserve Accounts (continued)

A reconciliation of the accumulated losses and capital reserves account can be seen below:;

Notes 2011 2010
Accumulated Losses $°000 $'000
For the year ended 30 June 2011
Balance at 1 July (34.739) (17.980)
Interest and dividend income 20,427 7,117
Expenses (16.871) (14,663)
Interest payable (10,904 (11.230)
Net foreign currency gains/losses (16.446) 8,712
Minority interest 398 564
(25.396) {9.500)
Issue of bonus warrants - (7,259
Balance at 30 June (38.135) (34.739)
Notes 2011 2010
Capital Reserve $°000 $°000
For the year ended 30 June 2011
Balance at 1 July 10.222 (8.607)
ZDP interest (9.683) (5,232)
Gains on investments 44.295 18,396
Minority interest (3.279) 6.065
31,333 19.229
Minority interest ceded - (400)
Balance at 30 June 41.555 10,222

16. SHAREHOLDER WARRANTS

On 17 August 2009, the Company issued 58.075,764 shareholder warrants by way of a Bonus Issue on the basis of
one warrant for every six US$ Equity Shares held as at that date. Each Warrant will confer the right (but not the
obligation) o subscribe, for cash, for one US$ Equity Share at the Subscription Price on any Business Day during
the period from | October 2009 until 30 June 2014 (both dates inclusive), after which the Subscription Rights under
the Warrants will lapse.

Each Warrant will be capable of conversion into one USS$ Equity Share upon exercise of the Subscription Right and
on payment of the Subscription Price as set out below.

Notice of the exercise of the Subscription Right may be given by warrant holders at any time from | October
2009 until 30 June 2014 (both dates inclusive). The US$ Equity Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of
Subscription Rights will be issued not later than 14 days after, and with effect from, the last day of the relevant
calendar quarter in which the Subscription Notice was received by the Company.
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16, SHAREHOLDER WARRANTS (continued)

The Subscription Prices. which have been determined by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Company as at 30
June 2009 are:

Date Subscription Notice received

by the Company (inclusive) Relevant Subscription Price

I October 2009 to 30 June 2010 USS1.35 (being a | per cent. premium to the NAV per US$ Equity Share as
at 30 June 2009)

1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011 USS$1.37 (being a 2 per cent. premium to the NAV per USS$ Equity Share as
at 30 June 2009)

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012 US$1.39 (being a 4 per cent. premium to the NAV per USS Equity Share as
at 30 June 2009)

I July 2012 to 30 June 2013 USS$1.45 (being an 8 per cent. premium to the NAV per US$ Equity Share
as at 30 June 2009)

I July 2013 to 30 June 2014 USS$1.47 (being a 10 per cent. premium to the NAV per US$ Equity Slare

as at 30 June 2009)

The following table details warrants exercised in the year;

Number of
Conversion warrants Number of
Exercise date price exercised shares issued
6 July 2010 1.35 12,224 12,224
6 October 2010 1.37 14,744 14,744
21 April 2011 1.37 16,667 16,667

At the year end there were 57,897,512 warrants outstanding. Subsequent to the year end. a further 1,593 warrants were
exercised a1 a price or'$1.37 leaving 57,895.919 warrants outstanding,
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17.  MATERIAL AGREEMENTS

The Managers. Bear Stearns Asset Management Inc. (“BSAM Inc.”) and J.P. Morgan Asset Management UK
(“JPMAM UK™) are entitled ta a base inanagement fce, payable monthly in arrears of 1.0% per annum of the
Company’s total assets. The management tee due for the year was $6,926,506 (2010: $6,687,657) and the amount
payable at the end of the year was $ 1.707.876 (2010: $1,721,389).

The Managers are also entitled to a performance tee if the aggregate Net Asset Value of the Equity Shares and the
ZIDP Shares at the end of the perfonmance period exceeds (1) the aggregate Net Assets at the start of the performance
period by more than § per cent and (ii) the highest previously recorded aggregate Net Asset Value of Equity and
ZDP shares as at end of performance period ot which perforimance fee was last paid.

The amount of such performance fee will be 7.5 per cent of the total increase in aggregate Net Asset Value above
the performance hurdie. The perforinance fee paid during the year was $NIL (2010: $NIL).

Follawing the acquisition of an interest in China Media Enterprises Limited. the Group has entered into a
performance agreement with Whale Capital Inc. Whale Capital Inc. is the sponsor of the Company’s investment in
China Media Enterprises Limited and is not an affiliate of the Group. Pursuant to the performance agreement, in the
event that the imiernal rate of return of the Group’s investment in China Media Enterprises Limited equals or
exceeds 30% per annum, Whale Capital Inc. shall be entitled to a performance fee i the total capital gains exceeds
1wo times of the investment amount. The performance fee shall be an amount equal to 20% of the total capital gain
that is in excess of two times of the investment amount.  The performance fee accrued during the vear was
$2.732.000 (2010: $2,595,000) and the amount payable at the end of the year was $5,327,000 (2010: $ 2.595.000).

The Administrator, HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited, is entitled to an annual fee in respect of administration
and company secretarial services calculated on the Total Assets of the Company of 0.1235% on the first $100 million.
0.1% on the next $30 million, 0.075% on the next $50 million and 0.05% on the balance subject to a minimum of
$125,000. The fee is payable monthly in arrears. The administration fee due for the vear was $ 458,817 (2010:
$446,896) and the amount payable at the end of the year was $151.930 (2010: S191,175).

Macquarie Investment Management Limited (“MIMLY). the sub-investment manager of MPCT is entitled to a
management fee payable quarterly in arrears and is calculated as 1.0% per annum of the Gross Asset Value. Gross
value for any quarter means the total value of all the private equity assets of the combined portfolio held by MPCT.
The management fee incurred for the year was $1,142.118 (2010: $1,067,838) and the amount payable at the end of
the year was $303,629 (2010: $279,4406)

MIML is also entitled to a performance fee on the return of MPCT as a single entity. The performance fee is
calculated on distributions, and is calculated as follows: Distributions of cash received (before any taxes that may be
payable as a result of such distribution) through the disposition of, or dividends, interest or other income from or in
respect of. the Combined Portfolio (“Distributions™) will be apportioned between MIML and the Company in
accordance with the following order of priority:

ay first, the Company will be entitled to 100% of the Distributions mntil the cumulative Distributions equal the
Contributed Capital.

h) second. the Company will be entitled 10 100% of the Distributions until the cumulative Distributions under this
clause (b) arc sufficient to provide the Company with an internal rate of return on the Company’s Contributed
Capital of 8% per annum. compounded annually (the Preferred Return);

¢) third. MIML will be entitled 10 50% of the Distributions until the cumulative Distributions are sufficient to
provide MIML in aggregate, by way of perforiance fee, 3.75% of the cumulative Disiributions made pursuant to
clause (hy and this clause (¢) (“the Catch Up™); and

dy fourth, the Company will be entitled to 92.5% of the cumulative Distributions. and MIML will be entitled to
7.5% of the cumulative Distributions by way of performance fee, after the Distributions in clause (a). (b) and (¢) (the
Split).

The performance fee paid to MIML during the year was $ Nil (2010 $ Nil).

Back Bay (Guernsey) Limited has entered into a loint Venture lending agreeiment with Stoneleigh Back Bay
Associates, L1.C the principal sum being $8.000,000.

www jpelonline.com

70



J.P. Morgan Private Equity Limited
Consolidated Financial Stalements as at 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17.

MATERIAL AGREEMENTS (continued)

The application of the Joint Venture proceeds are to be remitted as fallaws;

a)

b)

c)

&)

first, one hundred percent (100%) to the Lender (Back Bay (Guernsey) Limited) until the Lender has received
an amount equal to $8.000,000 plus additional amounts so that the Lender has received cunulative payments in
an amount equal 1o a 12% IRR on $8.000,000 from the Closing Date through the applicable payiment dates

second, eighty percent (80%) to the Lender and twenty percent (20%) to the Borrower (Stoneleigh Back Bay
Associates. LLC) untif the Borrower has retained an amount equal to $1.250,000

third. one hundred percent (100%) to the Lender until it has received, together with distributions an amount
equal to $1,250,000 plus any and all unpaid fees. costs, and expenses due and owing to the Lender under the
Note, Plus any and all accrued and unpaid interest owed at the Default Rate. plus any and all accrued and
unpaid interest owed at the Interest Rate. plus all outstanding and unpaid principal. plus any accrued and unpaid
Prepayment Premiums. in each case calculated trom the Closing Date through the applicable payment date and

{ourth, forty-nine and nine-tenths percent (49.9%) to the Lender and fifty and one-tenth percent(50.01% to the

Borrower.

The performance tee paid to Stoneleigh Back Bay Associates, 1.LC during the year was $ Nil (2010 $ Nil).

18. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the net gain for the vear of § 7.937,000 (2010: gain
$9,729,000). The weighted average number of Equity Shares in issue during the year tor the Group was 363,996,536

(2010: 358,594,101).

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

In thousands of shares Note 2011
Issued shares at 30 June 2010 15 367.871
Effect of shares issued on:
06 July 2010 15 12
06 October 2010 15 11
22 February 2011 15 (3,901)
21 April 2011 15 3
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June
2011 363.997
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
In thousands of shares Note 2010
Issued shares at 30 June 2009 15 274260
Effect of shares issued an:
16 July 2009 15 35,409
17 July 2009 15 3,394
31 July 2009 15 11.759
07 August 2009 15 5.603
12 August 2009 15 11,292
2 August 2009 15 2,605
28 August 2009 15 1.073
28 August 2009 15 1.572
24 September 2009 15 98
24 September 2009 15 11.489
15 April 2010 15 40
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 lune
2010 358,594
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18. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
(continued)

The Net Asset Value per share is based on the Net Asset Value for the year of $483,784.000 (2010: $469.459,000).
The total number of Equity Shares in issue during the vear for the Group was 356.877.850 (2010: 367,871,129).

At vear end the Warrants are out of the money and therefore do not have any dilutive effect on the Earnings Per
Share.

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

IPMorgan Assel Management {UK) Limited. and Bear Stearns Asset Management Inc (“the Managers™) are both
related parties of the Group.

Mr. Getschow is a senior executive of Bear Stearns Asset Management Inc, one of the Managers to the Group and a
subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co.

Other than Mr. Spencer who owns 30,067 USS$ Equity Shares, no other Director holds directly or indirectly shares in
the Group.

fram Ist January 2007 10 December 2010 Mr. Ash is entitled to receive Directors fees of £25,000 per annum, Mr.
Loudon and Mr. Spencer are each entitled to receive Directors fees of £20,000 per annum,

From ™ January 2011 Mr. Ash is entitled 1o receive Directors fees of £40,000 per annuny, Mr. Loudon and Mr.
Spencer are each entitled to receive Directors fees of £30.000 per annum. Mr Getschow has waived his right to
Directors Fees.

20. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 12 September 2011 the Group acquired a portfolio of 38 private equity co-investments tor £36.5m. The
consideration for this acquisition was in the form of US$ Equity Shares and newly issued 2017 Zero Dividend

Preference shares (LSE: JPSZ).

The 2017 Zero Dividend preference Shares took the following form tor consideration for the acquisition:

Initial capital entitlement 65.0p

Final capital entitlement 107.1p

2017 ZDP share redemption date 31 December 2017
Effective annualised gross , 8.25%

redemption yield

Number of 2017 ZDP shares 30,410,753
Dealing date 12 September 2011

Subsequent to 30 June 2011 there have been a series of share buybacks purchased into treasury. These purchases are
in accordance with the Group’s policy to minimise any discount between the market price of its shares and the
Company’s net asset value.

Number of shares Total value of buyback

Purchase date Purchase price _purchased S
23 Augast 2011 0950 325.000 308,750
24 August 2011 0.952 180,006 171,400
21 August 2011 0.964 125,000 120.300
| Seprember 2011 0.970 160.000 155,175
2 Scpiember 2011 0.998 350.000 349,125
3 September 2011 0.994 350,000 347.813
6 Seprember 2011 0.998 111,000 11,723
7 September 2011 0.998 100.000 99,750
8 September 2011 t 130,000 150.000
13 September 2011 0937 176.000 164,948
18 October 2011 0832 - 100,000 83,166
20 October 2011 0.842 30,000 42.084
2.177,600 2,103,434
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21.  SUPPLEMENTARY NET ASSETS OF THE COMPANY

The following table details supplementary information about the net assets of the Company as at the reporting date:

2011 2010
Assets $°000 $°000
Financial asseis designated at fair value
thraugh protit or loss upon initial
recognition:
- Equity investments 659,575 552.335
- Financial assets held for trading- 311 15.176
derivatives
Cash and cash equivalents 36,986 106.347
Receivables 3.198 17,084
Total financial assets 700,070 690,942
Liabilities
Financial liabilitics held for trading-
derivatives (1.939) -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised (214,347) (221.483)
cost
Total financial liabilities (216,286) (221,483)
Net Assets 483,784 469,459
No. of shares in issue 356,878 367,871
NAY per equity share $1.36 $1.28

The following table reconciles unaudited 30 June 2011 NAV per USS Equity Share of $1.34 as released on 16
August 2011 and audited NAYV per USS Equity Share of $1.36 referenced in the table above:

2011 Per Share

$°000 $
Unaudited NAV released on 16 August 2011 476,812 1.34
Change in fair market value 6,149 0.02
Other adjustments 823 -
Audited NAV released on 31 October 2011 483,784 1.36
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22. SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
10th Lane Finance Co. L.LC. 7.037 5425
ABN Amro Capital Australia Fund H 1.095 499
Aisling Capital Partners 11, LP 1.380 1.561
Aksia Capital 11 L.P. 6.709 3.661
Alia Capital Fund 1 CV 2.668 3.130
Alto Capital 11 5.276 3.799
Alto 17 Development Capital 1 S.C.A. - 728
Ancestry.Com - 3.898
Apollo International Real Fstate Fund 660 378
Apollo Investment Fund V. LP 2.038 2.060
Apollo Real Estate Investment Fund 1V, 1P 1.054 1.07)
Argan Capital Fund 10.498 6.996
Arlington Capital Partners 11, LP 2,619 2.033
Arrow Path Fund I1. L.P. 1.135 1.047
Australasian Media and Communications Fund 2 C 1.590 709
Avista Capital Partners (Oftshore), L.P. 18.612 16.619
Bain Capital Fund V1. LP 23 71
Beacon India Private Equity Fund 10.507 8.042
Bear Stearns Global Turnaround Fund, L..P. 36.968 36.586
Bear Stearns Private Opportunity Ventures, LP 3.799 4.163
Black Diamond Capital Management 4.887 3.275
Blackstone Capital Partners V. L.P. 6.178 5.355
Blackstone Capital Parers 1V, LLP 4.599 3.654
Blackstone Real Estate Parters 1V, 1P 1.736 1.293
Blue River Capital | 9.437 -
BoS Mezzanine Partners. L.P 123411 93.005
Candlover 2001 Fund 506 668
Candover 2005 Fund 2.940 1.612
Carlyle Asia Partners 11, LD 4,163 3.731
Carlyle/Riverstone Global Energy and Power Fund 111 5.999 5318
Carlyle/Riverstone Renewable Energy Infrastructure Fund | 2.259 3,392
Catalyst Buyout Fund A 5618 4,221
Catalyst Buyout Fund 1B 5.618 4,221
Ceram Polymerick CN 6 68
Charterhouse Capital Partners VIl 5.324 3,386
China Media Enterprises Limited 34.634 40.976
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (continued)

2010
$'000

2011
$'000
Clearwater Capital Partners Fund |, L.P. 3,990
Clearwater Capital Partners Opportunities Fund. L.P. 398
Colony Investors V1. LP 340
CPC Luxury Optical Investinent LLC 1,852
CPC RD Investment LL.C 3,483
Dolphin Communications Fund II, LP 155
Doughty Hanson & Co. Technology Fund 619
Education Management Corp -
Esprit Capital 1 Fund 11,572
Esprit Capital 111 LP 248
Freescale Semiconductor. Inc. 1,087
GBS3 Bio Ventures 2,662
Gemini lsrael 111, LP 164
Global Buyout IFund, L.P. 6,320
Global Opportunistic Fund 9,524
Green Investors 11, LP 169
Gridiron Capital Fund, L.P. 4,667
Guggenheim Aviation Offshore Investment Fund I1. L.P. 9,732
Gulf Healthcare International LLC 5,990
HG Capital V. L.P. 2,226
Highstar Capital 1] Prism Fund, L.P. 4,480
Hupomone Capital Fund, 1..P. 4,127
Hutton Collins Capital Partners 11 L.P 4,207
Industry Ventures Acquisition Fund, L.P. (MPCT) 47
Industry Ventures Acquisition Fund, LP 18
Industry Ventures Fund 1V, L.P. (MPCT) 3,343
Industry Ventures Fund 1V, 1.P 3,158
Industry Ventures Fund V. L.P 4,916
Industry Ventures Fund VI, L.P 52
Leeds EquilyAParmm's 1V Co-Investiment Fund A, L.P. 13,945
Leeds Equity Partners 1V, LP 9,018
L.eeds Equity Partners V. LP 4,981
L.iberty Partners I, L.P. 21,566
Life Sciences Holdings SPV | Fund. LP 21,231
Macquarie Wholesale Co-investment Fund 10,935
Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund 9,561
Macquarie Global Infrastructure Fund A -
Macquarie Global Intrastructure Fund B -
Macquarie True Index Cash Fund 20,166

4,965
901
766

3,234

3,560
332

1,364

1,520

14,797
5
990

2,210
166

8,472

14,957
168

4,385

9,674

2,057

4,417

3,580

3,582
146

19

3,344

3,029

3,048

8,901

8,692

2,136

29,842
19,731
16.525

5,357

5
10
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (continued)

Main Street Resources 1. L.P.

Main Street Resources 11, L.P.

Macquarie Alternative Investment Trust |

Macquarie Alternative Investment Trust 1

Macquarie Alternative Investment Trust I11

Markstone Capital Parwers, LP

Milestone Link Fund. L.P.

Milestone 2010

Montagu 1T LP

Morning Street Partners, L.P.

Olympus Capital Asia H(Oftshore),L.P.

Omega Fund 111. L.P.

Oxford Bioscience Partners IV, LP

PCG Special Siruations Partnership

Primopiso Acquisition S.a.r.|

Private Equity Access Fund 11 Ltd

Providence Equity Partners 1V, LP

Quadrangle Capital Partners, LP

Quadrant Private Equity No 1A

Quadrant Private Equity No 1B

Quadrant Private Equity No | LP

Realza Capital Fondo, FCR

Second Lien Debt Investment |

Second Lien Debt Investment 2

Second Lien Debt Investment 3

Startish Ventures Pre-Seed

Strategic Value Global Opportunities Feeder Fund I-A. LP
Strategic Value Global Opportunities Master Fund, L.P
Stoneleigh Back Bay Associates LLC

SVE Star Ventures

Terra Firma Deutsche Annington L.P.

Terra Firma Deutsche Annington L.P.(JPEL TF Limited)
Thomas H. Lee Equity Fund V. L.P.

Trumpet Feeder Ltd

Veritas 111, LLC (Formerly HGX Private Equity Fund LP)
Warburg Pincus Private Equity VIII, LP

Wellington Partners Ventures I GMBH & CO. KG(B)
Wellington Partners Ventures 111 Life Science Fund 1..P.

Total market value of Investments held by the Group
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2011 2010

$'000 $'000
1,744 1,984
3,183 2,506
7,060 7,254
16,651 14,970
9,408 9,681
3,247 3,119
17,566 13,415
5,872 -
3,883 2,785
877 1,055
1,955 1,941
7,572 8,062
682 897
5,379 5.858
17,749 .
6,630 8.017
2,221 2.975
1,034 1,401
434 357
434 357
970 5,058
1,330 760
3,314 4,252
4,731 2,251
2,402 -
255 230
4,301 5,230
5,908 5,411
7,458 -
640 636
2,158 1,665
47200 36,427
2,251 2,705
3,904 2,838
- 6.980
5,440 4,180
1,241 985
1,988 1,692
760,823 632,193
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